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2020
14,430,960 43.75
203,396 0.62
43,340 0.13
10,978,246 33.28
703,505 2.13
254,481 0.77
202,408 0.61
159,887 0.48

73,429 0.22

63,075 0.19
5,619,708 17.04
32,732,435 99.22
256,321 0.78
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2020
A 500 | 2045 2,580,000 | 0.49| 1,272,309 | o0.51| 1,324,627 | 4.02
oY 2% 250 | 2025 30 | 1,240,000 1.00| 1,246,609 | 1.00| 1,246,875 3.78
S o 750 | 2042 11 15 648,000 [ 1.00 649,119 | 1.28 830,005 | 2.52
e oy N/ 3 .000 | 2047 15 575,000 [ 1.01 581,309 | 1.36 783,104 | 2.37
S o 0250 6252030 15 712,000 [ 0.99 706,165 | 1.00 710,013 | 2.15
s L 25| 2041 11 15 490,000 | 1.16 567,175 | 1.35 663,459 | 2.01
o rson .000 | 2049 12 580,000 [ 0.97 561,019 | 1.01 583,278 | 1.7
P o2l PR .000 | 2047 700,000 [ 0.68 476,817 | 0.68 478,241 | 1.45
a2 000 | 2050 15 377,000 | 1.15 434,512 | 1.14 431,617 | 1.31

10| F o o .000 | 2050 388,000 | 1.04 404,859 | 1.0 407,172 | 1.23

11 [ A haE POOL FRY .500 | 2045 11 616,000 [ 0.5 364,192 | 0.62 379,788 | 1.15

12| FAIRIE b POOL FRY .000 | 2047 470,000 | 0.73 341,156 | 0.78 368,320 | 1.12

13| e o .000 | 2047 400,000 | 0.86 342,020 | 0.89 357,650 | 1.08

1| 50 TR 1258 1125 | 2022 31 350,000 | 1.0 349,602 | 1.00 349,815 | 1.06
FREDDIE MAC GOLD

15| POOL FRN 01/10 .000 | 2046 10 475,000 | 0.64 303,374 | 0.73 345,439 | 1.05
/2046

16| FREDDIE wnC FRY 500 | 2047 11 485,000 | 0.66 321,145 | 0.70 337,314 | 1.02

17 [ e e o .000 | 2050 320,000 | 1.02 325,466 | 1.04 333,242 | 1.01

18| FREDPIE WA BOLD a1 .000 | 2031 10 410,000 | 0.74 301,541 | 0.78 319,705 | 0.97

19| FAINIE e POOL FRY 500 | 2047 11 395,000 | 0.74 200,021 | 0.77 304,631 | 0.92
FREDDIE MAC GOLD

20| POOL FRN 01/09 .000 | 2047 415,000 | 0.68 282,344 | 0.73 303,567 | 0.92
/2047

21 [ P ae POOL FRY 500 | 2050 305,000 [ 0.97 207,241 | 0.98 299,886 | 0.91

22 | REDDI anC FRY .000 | 2046 12 385,000 | 0.67 250,404 | 0.74 286,248 | 0.87
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CITIZENS FINANCIAL

23| GROUP (REG) 2.85% .850 | 2026 27 250,000 .02 254,790 | 1.08 270,068 | 0.82
27/07/2026
PNC BANK NA (REG)

24 | SER BKNT 2.45% .450 | 2022 28 250,000 .99 248,710 | 1.04 259,306 | 0.79
28/07/2022
US TREASURY N/B

25| 0 a75% 31/03/2022 .375 | 2022 31 245,000 .00 245,650 | 1.00 245,902 | 0.75
COMCAST CORP (REG)

26| 50 0170272024 .000 | 2024 210,000 .03 215,808 | 1.08 226,027 | 0.69
US TREASURY .25%

27 12 10779029 .250 | 2029 15 195,000 .01 197,632 | 1.10 213,953 | 0.65
FREDDIE MAC GOLD

28 b0l FRN 01/11/2046 .500 | 2046 11 315,000 .61 192,335 | 0.66 208,621 | 0.63
GE CAPITAL INTL
FUNDING (REG)

29| a8 1571172035 418 | 2035 11 15 200,000 .06 211,496 | 1.01 202,408 | 0.61
W/
HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

30| (REG) VAR 875 | 2199 12 200,000 .08 216,000 [ 1.02 203,396 | 0.62
29/12/2049

2020
2020
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2020
2018 12 31 38,431,573 4,140,618 932
2019 12 31 38,854,732 4,186,209 943
2019 41,446,114 4,465,404 950
40,396,930 4,352,365 969
39,733,002 4,280,834 959
10 39,683,914 4,275,545 955
11 39,133,353 4,216,227 951
12 38,854,732 4,186,209 943
2020 40,471,312 4,360,379 957
39,960,361 4,305,329 968
34,598,383 3,727,630 942
33,351,160 3,593,254 956
32,570,594 3,509,156 961
32,988,756 3,554,209 970
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2017 11 27 2’843’883 2706317 2,573,566
2018 12 31
2019 2676335 3186579 2,52(1),322
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
4(b) 38,194,309 4,115,055 37,198,510 4,007,767
4(b), 156,640 16,876 695,636 74,948
215,864 23,257 228,076 24,573
6 1 10 1
159,287 17,162
509,960 54,943 372,007 40,080
39,236,066 4,227,294 38,494,239 4,147,369
4(b), 2,541 274 5,320 573
318,681 34,335
8(a), 8(b) 60,112 6,476 57,346 6,178
381,334 41,085 62,666 6,752
38,854,732 4,186,209 38,431,573 4,140,618
2,521,322.43 2,572,565.64
1,961,154.50 1,965,002.50
943 932
940 922

2020 28
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2019 12 31
2017 11 27
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
1,550,785 167,082 2,230,585 240,323
7,135 769 4,944 533
1,044,808 112,568 (2,081,663) (224,278)
410,377 44,214 126,489 13,628
452 49

4,614 497 (14,923) (1,608)
3,018,171 325,178 265,432 28,598
8(a) (99,333) (10,702) (90, 650) (9,767)
8(b) (21,441) (2,310) (19,442) (2,095)
8(b) (12,000) (1,293) (12,998) (1,400)
(41,824) (4,506) (39,550) (4,261)
8(b) (50,000) (5.387) (53,800) (5.796)
8(b) (7,184) 774) (6,760) (728)
(1,185) (128) (976) (105)
8(b) (4,392) 473) (3,000) (323)
(3,654) (394)
8(b) (12,072) (1,301) (8,929) (962)
(249,431) (26,874) (239,759) (25,832)
2,768,740 298,304 25,673 2,766
(1,737,980) (187,250) (1,506,792) (162,342)
1,030,760 111,054 (1,481,119) (159,576)
(6,654) 717) (6,571) (708)
1,024,106 110,337 (1,487,690) (160, 284)
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2019 12 31
2017 11 27
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
38,431,573 4,140,618
2,784,441 299,996 42,211,862 4,547,906
1,737,980 187,250 1,506,792 162,342
(5,123,368) (551,992) (3,799,391) (409,346)
(600,947) (64,746) 39,919,263 4,300,901
1,024,106 110,337 (1,487,690) (160, 284)
38,854,732 4,186,209 38,431,573 4,140,618
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2019 12 31
2017 11 27
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

1,024,106 110,337 (1,487,690) (160,284)
(1,550,785) (167,082) (2,230,585) (240,323)
(7,135) (769) (4,944) (533)
6,654 717 6,571 708
1,737,980 187,250 1,506,792 162,342
1,210,820 130,454 (2,209,856) (238,090)
(995,799) (107,287)  (37,198,510) (4,007,767)
536,217 57,772 (690,316) (74,375)

(159,287) (17,162)

318,681 34,335
2,766 208 57,346 6,178
913,398 98,410 (40,041,336) (4,314,054)
1,556,343 167,680 1,995,938 215,042
7,139 769 4,934 532
2,476,880 266,859 (38,040, 464) (4,098,480)
2,784,441 299,996 42,211,862 4,547,906
(5.123,368) (551,992) (3,799,391) (409,346)
(2.338,927) (251,996) 38,412,471 4,138,560
137,953 14,863 372,007 40,080

372,007 40,080
509,960 54,943 372,007 40,080
509,960 54,943 372,007 40,080

1,506,792
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2019 12 31 38,854,732 2018 38,431,573
2019 12 31
2018
2019 2018
) ) ) )
2,572,566 1,965,003
167,226 159,367 2,763,903 2,042,811
100,109 102,029 78,980 97,987
(318,579) (265,244) (270,317) (175,795)
2,521,322 1,961,155 2,572,566 1,965,003
2019 2018
38,854,732 38,431,573
2,159 2,878
38,856,891 38,434,451
2019 2018
943 932
940 922
2019 2018
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2019 2018
38,194,309 37,468,980 98.30 37,198,510 37,652,424 96.79
156,640 0.40 695,636 1.81
2,541 0.01 5,320 0.01
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
310,368
67,443 48,813
694,341 138,367
159,913 136,355
664,216 689,006
213,066 100,687
122,498
498,554
36,395,330 35,153,862
38,194,309 37,198,510

2019 2018 12 31
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2019 2018
6.07 13.85
13.56 16.37
17.88 15.14
39.07 26.31
21.39 24.61
0.33 0.51
98.30 96.79

2019 2018 12 31 10
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2019 12 31

19,462,493 7,202,924 11,528,892 38,194,309
156,640 156,640
375,157 375,157
509,960 509,960
19,972,453 7,202,924 11,528,892 531,797 39,236,066
2,541 2,541
378,793 378,793
38,854,732 38,854,732
39,236,066 39,236,066

19,972,453 7,202,924 11,528,892

2018 12 31

18,738,901 7,139,049 11,320,560 37,198,510
695,636 695,636
228,086 228,086
372,007 372,007
19,110,908 7,139,049 11,320,560 923,722 38,494,239
5,320 5,320
57,346 57,346
38,431,573 38,431,573
38,494,239 38,494,239

19,110,908 7,139,049 11,320,560
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2019 12 31 100
2,270,973 (2018 2,246,313 )
304,653 2018

266,200

2019 2018 12 31

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 2018 12 31

2019 12 31

The Hongkong and Shanghai

Banking Corporation Limited 38,194,309
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 156,640
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited 509,960
2018 12 31
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited 37,198,510
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 695,636
The Hongkong and Shanghai 372.007

Banking Corporation Limited
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25 )
39
2019 2018 12 31
12
2019 2018
5.98 9.20
1.99 2.86
5.85 7.63
21.39 21.10
0.62 0.26
0.18
62.29 55.74

98.30 96.79
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2019 12 31

156,640 156,640
156,640 156,640

2,541 2,541

2,541 2,541
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2019 12 31
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 156,640 2,541 154,099
156,640 2,541 154,099
2019 12 31
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 2,541 2,541

2,541 2,541
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2018 12 31
695,636 695,636
695,636 695,636
5,320 5,320
5,320 5,320
2018 12 31
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 695,636 5,320 690,316

695,636 5,320 690,316
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2018 12 31

HSBC Bank Hong Kong 5,320 5,320

5,320 5,320

12
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2019 12 31
2,541 2,541
318,681 318,681
60,112 60,112
38,854,732 38,854,732
39,236,066 39,236,066
2018 12 31
5,320 5,320
57,346 57,346
38,431,573 38,431,573
38,494,239 38,494,239
2019 12 31
38,194,309 38,194,309
156,640 156,640
215,864 215,864
6 6
159,287 159,287
509,960 509,960
39,236,066 39,236,066

751239
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37,198,510 37,198,510
695,636 695,636
228,076 228,076

10 10
372,007 372,007
38,494,239 38,494,239
2019 2018
21,928,961 21,068,183
2019 2018

1,096,448 1,053,409
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2019 12 31

38,194,309 38,194,309

156,640 156,640

38,350,949 38,350,949

2,541 2,541

2,541 2,541

2018 12 31

37,198,510 37,198,510

695,636 695,636

37,894,146 37,894,146

5,320 5,320

5,320 5,320

2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018 12 31

2019 12 31 2018

781239
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22,289,059

56,075,000

2018 12 31

2,434,772,136

514,197
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2019 2018
1,044,808 (2,081,663)

410,377 126,489

1,455,185 (1,955,174)

2019 2018

156,640 695,636

156,640 695,636

2,541 5,320

2,541 5,320

2020 31 156,640
156,640
2020 31 (2,541)

(2,541)
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2018 12 31

21,282,325 2,402,859,603 2019 31 695,636
695,636

24,000,000 214,142 2019 31 (5,320)
(5,320)

2011 81 50
2006
2015 2019
16.5

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

24

0.6
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31 99,333
2018 90,650 2019 12 31 8,328
2018 8,052
0.1
2019 12 31 12,000 2018 :12,998
2019 12 31 998 2018 :998 )
12 31
2019 2018
21,441 19,442
12,000 12,998
50,000 53,800
7,184 6,760
3,500 3,000
12,072 8,929
106,197 104,929
2019 12 31 10,679 2018 :9,744
( )
2019 12 31
2018

2018
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2019 2018
12 31
865,219 676,807
872,761 829,985
1,737,980 1,506,792
10

2020 28
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

2019 s
Motes UsD (5} ]
Assers
Financial assets al Bir value through profit or loss (k) 38,194,309 37,198.510
Derivative financial assets 4h). 6 156,640 695 636
Interest receivable on interest-bearmg securities 215,864 228,076
Interess receivable oa deposits B n
Amounts recgivable on zale of investmients 159,287 A
Cash and cash equivalents 00,060 72.007
Total assers 39,236,066 18,494,230
Linbilities
Derivative financial liabalities 4ib}, & 241 530
Aumounts pavable on purchase of mvestments 318.681 -
Uther payables Bla) B{b) 60,112 37.346
Linbilites (excluding net assets atiributable o
unitholders) 381334 62,666
et assers atribntable to unitholders | 3R, 854,732 38431573
Number of uniis in jssne
- Claxs A = Dhv (JPY Hedged) 3 2,521,32243 2.572.565.564
- Claxs A = Div (JPY Unhedged) 3 1,961,154.50 196500250
Net asset valoe per unit
- Class A = Dhv (JPY Hedped) 3 IPY 943 JPY 932
- Clyss A = Div (JPY Unhedged) 1 IPY 940 JPY 922
Agpproved by the Monager and the Trustee on 28 Aprdl 2020
On behall of Manulife Investment Manogemen? { Hong Kong) Limited
._,;g_.:.f' [ A /Ir
— -

On behalf of HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limated

A ¢ J
I;L Jﬂl ,.a' \4 ]’/

W

The netes on pages 10 ta 33 wre an integral part of these Gnancial satements.

L
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Perind from

27 Movember 2007

Year ended {ilate of inceplion}

31 Necember 2019 1o 31 December 2018

Notes usD USD
Incame
Irteress from nterest-bearing securilics 1,550,785 2,230,585
Bank interest 7.135 4,944

Met realived prins(losses) on finencial assels at fair

value through profit or Jogs and derivative financial

instrurnents 5 1,044 R0B (2,081,663)
Met chonge in wirealived peinslosscs on financial

ax5ets &t fir value through profit or loss end

derivative financial instruments 5 410,377 126 459
Sundry incoene 452 &
Net exchange gaing{losses) 4514 {14,923)

RO H I 263,432
Expenses
Tnvestment manegement fee Bia) (99,333) {50,650)
Safe custecly and processing foc B(b) (21,341) {19,442
Trustec fee B} (12,000 (12,998)
Auditor's remuneration (41.824) (39,5500
Valuaticn fec & {50,000) (53,8000
Transacticn handling fee 86} (7,184) {6,760
Annual authority fee (1.185) (076)
Accounting and other professional fecs (b {4.292) R
Preliminary expenses % (3,654)
Other operating expenses () {12.072) {,020)
Total operating expenses (249,431) (238,739
Operating profit 2,768,740 25,673
Finance cost
Distribution to unitholders 0 (1,737,980) (1,506.79%)
Profit/(loss) afier distribution and befort taxation 1,030,760 (1,481,119)
Taxalion
Withholding taxes (t,654) (6,571)

Tuotal comprehensive income/{Inss) for the
yearperiod 1,024,106 (1,487,690)

The notes on pages 10 to 33 are an integral part of these finmicial statements,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIEUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Pertad from
27 November 2017
Year ended {date of inception)
31 December 2019 to 31 December 2018
Notes Lsp LsD
Met assets attributable to unitholders at the
beginning of the vear/period 38,431,573 =
Proceeds on subscription 1 2,784,441 42,211,862
Proceeds on re-investment of distributisns 3,9 1,737,980 1,506,742
Tayments on redemption 3 (5,123,368) £3,799,391)
{600,947) 39,919,263
Tozal compiehensive income/{loss} for the year/period 1,024,106 (1,487,690
Met assets attributnble to unitholders at the end of
the year/period 38,854,732 38,431,573
e —

The notes on pages 10 to 33 ane an integral part of these financizl statements,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2019

Period from

27 November 2017

Year ended {date of inception)

31 December 2019 to 31 December 2013

LSD LSy
Cash Aovws from operating activithes
Tatal comprehensive Incomeloss) for the year/period 1,024,106 (1,487,690}
Adjusments for;
Interest from interest-bearing sacurities {1,550,785) {(2,230,585)
Bank interest (7,135) {4,944}
Withheolding taxes 3,654 6,571
Drismbution to unitholders 1,737,380 1,506,792
Operating incomef(loss) before working capital
changes 1,210,820 (2,209,856)
Met increase in financial assets at fair vaiue through
profit or loss {995,795} (37,198,510
Met chenge in derivative financial instruments 536,217 (690,316)
Met imcreass in amounts receivable on sale of
investments (159.287) -
Net merease in amounis payable on purchase of
invesments 318,081 -
Met increase in other payahles 2,766 57,340
Cash generated fromf{used in) operations 913,398 (40,041,330}
Irterest from interest-bearing securilies reccived 1,556,343 1,995 918
Bank interest income received T138 4,934
Met cash generated from/used in) operating
activities 2,476,380 (38 040 464)
Cash flows from financing activites
Proceeds an suhseription 2,784,441 42,211,862
Payments on redemption (5,123,368) (3,799,191)
Net cazh (used in)generated from financing
activities {2,338,927) IZAIZATI
Met Increase in cash and cash equivalents 137,953 ITL007
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
vear/period 372,007 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year/period 508,960 372,007
P —
Analysis of balance of cash and eash equivalents
Cash ar banks 508,960 72,007
— T —

Mom-cash tranzactions:
Druring the veariperiod, LISD1, 737,980 of distribution was reinvested (20 18:US00,506,792) in the fund.

The notes on pages 10 to 33 are an integral part of these financial statements,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2019

1. The Fund

The Manuiife Investments Trust {the "Trust™) is an wnbrella unit trust created by a trust Jeed (the *Masier
Trust Deed”) dated 5 MNovember 2002 between HEBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™) and
Manulle Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly kiown as Manclife Asset Management
{Hong Kong) Limited} (the “Manager™). The Master Trust Deed was amended and restated by an amending
and resiziing deed dated 14 June 2003 (as amended and supplemenied from time to time) (the “Amending
and Reatuting Deed™). The Trust is o leensed mutual fund under section 4(1) of the Mutpal Funds Law of
the Cayman Islands.

The Trustes and the Manaper esiablished Manulife Investments Trust - US Core Fixed Income Fund, a
geries Trust (lhe “Fimd™) by execution of a relevamt Supplemental Trust Deed. The Pund commenced
operations on 27 November 2017 (date of inception), During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Truses
and the Manager sstabiished one new series trust, which is Manulife Investments Trugt - Asia Total Beturn
Bond Fund. As at 3] December 201%, apart from the Fund, there are six other series frusis, nameiy,
Manulife lnvestments Trust - Swategic moams Fund, Manulife Investments Trust - Fleating Rats [neomtes
Fund, Manulife Investments Trust - Strategic Income Opportunities Fund, Manulife Investments ‘T'rust -
Global Allocation Fund 11, Manulife Investmenis Trust - Investment Grade CLO Fund end Manulife
Investments Trusl - Asia Total Return Bond Fund.,

2. Suommary of significant accounting pofiches

‘The principal accounting policies appiied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below,
These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

{a) Basis of preparation

The finencial statements have been prepared in accordance with ITong Kong Financial Reporting
Stundards (“HKFRS™) djssued by the Hong Koog Institie of Certified Public Accountanis
("HKICPA™). The financial statements hove been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the reveluation of financial asscls snd fnancial liakililies (including derivative financial
insbraments) at fair value through prefil of loss.

The preparation of fingncial statemenrs m conformity with HKFRS requires the Trugtes and the
Manaper to make judpements, atimates and assumptions that affect the applicarion of policies and the
reporfed smounis of assels and liabililies, income and expenses, The cstimates and associated
assumplions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 1o ke
reasonable under the circumstmces, the resulis of which form the basis of making the judpements about
carrying valees of essets and liabilitics thet are not peadily apparcnt from olher sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.,

The statement of Onancisl position represents axsets and labilitics in increasing erder of lquidity and
does not distinguish between carent ancd non-current ilems,

Standards end amendiments o existing standerds effective | January 2009

Theee are no standards, amendments to sanderds or interpretations that are cffcctive for annual periods
begirning on | Janury 2009 et have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

New siandards. amendments and interpretations izsued but got effective for the financial vear begimning
1 Januery 2019 and have not besn early adopted by the Fund

A number of new standirds, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for anaual
periods bopinning after | January 2019, and have not boen early adopted n preparing these financial
statemenls. Wone of these are expected 10 have & melerial effect on the financial statements of the
Fumnel.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  Summary of significant accounting pelicies (Continued)

(b) Financial axsets at fair valec through profit or loss

()

Classification

Tae Fund classifies itz investments based on both the Fund's business model for managing those
financial assets and the confractual cash flew charactenistics of the financial assets. The portfolio of
financial azsets is managed and performence ie evalumed on a fair value basis. The Furd ks primarily
focuged on fair value information and uses that information o assess the assets’ performance and to
make dezisions. The Fund has not izken the option to irevocably desipnate any equity securitiss as fair
value through other comprehensive meome. The contracival cash fiows of the Funds debt securities are
solely principal and inferest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of callecting
contractual cash fows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of
contractual cash flows is only incidenial to archiving the Fund’s business model's obfective,
Conszguently, all investments are measured &t &ir value through profit or loss.

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair valire are presented as liabilities at fair value through
profit or oss

Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recopnized on the rade date — the date an which the
Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets a? fair value through profit or loss are
inithally recopnized el fair value, Transsclion cosis are expensed a8 noered in the statement of
comprehensive incwme.

Financial assets are derecopmized when the rights (o receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

Suhszequent o inilial recognition, all Firencial sssets at fir valoe through profit or loss are measured at
fuir value, CGiains and losscs arising from changes in the Gir valee of the “Financial assels at fir valoe
through profit or loss”™ calegory are presented in the staterent of comprehemsive income.

Dividend income from finanecial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised In the statement
of comprehensive income within dividend income whem the Fund's right to receive paymenls is
established. Interest on debt securities ot fair value through profit or Joss is recognized in the statement
of comprebensive incame within tvterest bicome based on the =ffective interest ratle.

Fair value estimation
The fallowing represent the hasis of valuation for financial reporting purposes:
(i) Investments which are listed or traded on an exchange are fair valued based on last treded prices,

(1) Investments which are not listed on an exchange or are thinly traded are valued by using quotes
from brokers.

Income

Interest inconte on debt securities are incleded in mierest from interest-bearmg scourities within the
stetement of comprehensive income. Interest income on debt instuments other than floating rate
seeurities are recognized on a time-propertionate basis uwsing the effective intercst method, Other
income is accounted for on an acerual besis,

The effective interest mcthod s o meihod of caleulating the amortized cost of an inferest-bearing asser
and of allocating the interest meome over the relevant period, The clfoctive interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future eash receipts throughout the expected life of the financiul nstryment,
or & shorler period where sppropriste, 1o the nel curying smeunt of the fnancial instrument. When
caleulating the efective interest mate, the Fund estimates cash flows considering all comtractual terms of
the financial instrumont (for cuample, propayment options) bt does not consider fiture credit losses.
‘The calculation ineludes all fees and points received between partics 1o the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, trensaction costs and all other premivmes or discounts.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1. Bummary of sipnificant aceounting palicies (Continued)
{d) Translation of foreizn currencies
(1) Functional and presentation cirrencies

Iems included in the Fund's finaneizl statements are measured using the cumency of te primary
cconomic environment in which it cperates {the “fimctional currency®™). The financial statements
are presented in United States dollar (*USDY), which is the Fund’s funetionel and presentation
CUITENCY,

{ii) Transactionsand balances

Foreign cwrtency transactions are ranslated imo the fimetional cumrency using the exchange raes
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Foreign cumency assets and Habilities wre translated into
the finctional currency using the exchange rte praveiling at the statement of fnaneial position
date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from anslation are pressated as “Net exchange
gains{losses)” in the statement of comprehensive income,

Foreign erochange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and labilities coried af fair value
trough profit or loss are presented in the statsment of comprehensive income within "MNet realized
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative finencial instruments™
and "Met change in unrealized gaine/losses on financial assets at fair valve through profit ar loss
and derivative fnancial insruments”,

(¢} Expcnses
Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis,
(fy Derivative financial instruments

Outstanding forward foreign cxchange conlracts are valued at the year/period end date by reference to
the forward rate of exchange applicable 1o the outstanding term of the contract. The fair value of bond
fitires and options traded in sctive merkets are based on lagt traded markel prices at (ke close of
wrading on the reporting date. The fair value of options that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuition techniques. The Fund uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are buzed on market conditions exisiing at cach reporting date. Valuation technigues wsed include
the use of comparable recenl srm's length wansactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantiolly the sane, discounted cash flow soalysls, option peicing models and other valmtion
techniques commonly wsed by market purticipants making the maximum use of market inputs and
relying as liitle as possible on entilvsspecific inputs, Unrcalized gains or loscs en outstanding contracts
and nealized gring and losses on closed contracts are shown in the ststement of comprehensive income
within *“Met chanpe in unreslized pairs/losses on fnancial assets st fir value through profit or loss and
derivative financigl instruments” wnd *Met reslized painsflossex) on finencial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial insruments” respectively,

(g} Subscription and redemption of units

All procceds and payments for units issued and redeemed are shown as movenents in the statement of
changes in net asscls atiribuable o unitholders. The nel asset value of the Fund s compated daily,
Prices for issues and redemptions are based on the Jatest available preceding valuarion,

The Fund issves two classes of units, which are redeemable at the holder’s option and do nos have
identical rights, Such tnirs are classified a2 fnancial liabilitizs. Units can be put back to the Pund at any
time for cash equal to a proportionate shere of the Fund's net asset value,

The redzemakle shares are carricd at amortized cost which carresponds to the redemption amount that
is payzhle at the starement of finaneial position date if the holder exercise the right to put the share back
to the Fund.

12
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. Summary of significant aceounting policies (Continned)
(g} Subscription and redemption of units (Confinmed )

Units are 1ssuad dnd redecmicd at the holde"s option al prices based on the Fund's net asset value per
unit at the time of issue or redemption, The Fund’s nel asset value per unil for each class is calculated
by dividing the net assets attributakle to unitholders of the class with the fotal number of outsfandmg
units in the class,

{h) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilifies are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when thers is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and lability simultaneoosly. The legally enforceable
right will not be contingent on future events and roust be enforceabls in the normal course of the
business and in the event of defaulr, insolvency or bankruptey of the Fund or the counterperty.

(i} Amounts receivable on salefpavable on purchase of investments

Amounts receivable on sale’payable en purchase of investments represent reéceivables from investmends
sold and payables for mvestments purchased that have been contracted for but not vet =ettled or
delivered on the slztement of fnancial position date respectively. The amounts receivable on sle
balance is hald for collection.

These amounts are recopnized initially at fair value and subsequently measured ot amortised cost. At
each resarting date, the Fund shall measurs the loss allowanee on amounts receivable on sale at an
amount equal to the lifstime expected credit lasses if the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recopnition. [f, at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased =ipgnificantly since inivial
recognition, the Fuad shall measure the less allowance 21 an smount equal to 1 2-menth expected credit
loezes, Sipmificant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will nter bankruptey
or finameial reoryanization, and default in payments are all considered indicators thet a loss allowanee
may be required. IT the credit risk incresses (o the paint that it is considered to be credit impaired,
interest meome will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss allowanee.
A significant inerezse in credil risk is defined by manegement gs any conirsctul payment which is
more than 30 days past duc Any contractoal pyment which is more than 90 days past due is
considered credit impaired,

{j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalonts includes cash at banks and depasits held with banks.

(k) Distribution to unitholders

Distribution to Class A — Div (JPY Hedged) ard Class A - Div (JPY Unhedgal} unitholders are
presented as finance cost in these financial statements ax the net azsels aribatable o initholders are
classified as financial fabilitics. They will be first paid out of the incorae {which may include capital
#aing) which are recopnized in the statement of camprehensive income, thereafter oul of the capital of
the Fund atiributable to the relevant class of units of the Fund,

The digributions 2 Class A — Div (JPY Hedged) and Class A — Div (JPY Unhedged) unitholders are
declercd monthly and will be automatically reirvested in additione! units of the same closs and will be
issued at o subseription price on the reinvestment date,

() Establishment eosts

In accordence with the Fund’s Offering Memorendum, the costs and expenses in cormection with the
establishment of the Fund will be home by the Fund, For the purpose of alculpting the subscription
and redemplion net asset value, the establishment costs will be amortized within the pericd from the
elose of tha initial offer period of the Units of the Fund 1o the end of the Fund’s fifih financial year
unless the Manager or its duly authorized agent decides that some ether method 25 to be applied. Under
HETRS, establishment costs are recopnized as an expense in the period in which they are inouwred,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEL 31 DECEMBER 2019

3, Nomber of units in issue and nel assets attributable to unitholders per unit

The Fund's capital is repressnted by the units in the Fund and shown as “net assets atributable to
unitholders” in the stalement of finzngial positien, Subscriptions and redemptions of wnits duging the
year/period are shown in the statement of changes in net asceds attributable to unithelders, In arder to
achieve the investment objectives, the Fund endeavors to imvest its capital in accordance with the
investment policies, as ootlined in note 4, whilst main=ining sufficient Hguidity to meet redemption
requests, Such loguidity is augmented by the holding of liquid investments,

As at 31 December 2009, the Fund hos USDOE 854,732 (2018 USD38,£31,573) of puttakble nancial
instruments classified as labilities, As ot 31 December 2019, the Fund offers 2 (2018:2) classes of units,

Class A — Div (JPY Hedged) and Class A — Div (JPY Unhedged).

2019 2018

Class A —Div Class A - Div Class A —Div Class A - Div

(JPY Hedged) (JPY Unhedged)  (JPY Hedged) (JPY Unhedged)

Units Units Unitz Units

Balance brought forward 2,572,566 1,565,003 - -
Total subseripfions 167,226 159,367 2,763 903 2M3EL
Total re-invesmment 100, 108 1oz, 029 74,980 97,987
Total redemplions (118.579) (265,244) (270,317) (175,795)
Balance carried forward 2,521,322 2,572,566 1,965,005

1,961,155

In sccordance with the Fund's Offering Memorandum, the caablishment costs of the Fund will be
amaorntized over the {irst five years in caleulating the Fund's net asser value for subseription and redenpticn,
However, HKFRS reguires the Fund fo cxpense cslablishment costs in the statement of comprehenzive
income as incurred. The differences between expeasing the estnblishment costs 25 incurred in sccordance
with HKFRE and the capitalization and emortization of the establisiment costs indicated in the Fund's
Offering Mertorandum resulted in adjustments iz the net asset valus 05 presented balow,

Met assets atwibutakle to unitholders as reported in the statement of
linancial position
Adjusiments for unamortized establishment costs

Met asset value in accordance with the Fimd®s Offering Memorandum

et azsets atfribiiakle (o umitholders per unit (per statement of financial

pasition)
Class A — Div (JFY Hedged)
Class A = Div {JPY Unhecged)

Met assets atributable to unitholders per unit (at dealing net asset value for

subseription and redemption)
Class A (JPY Hedged)
Class A (JPY Unhedgad)

2019 2018

UsD usD
18,854,732 38,431,573
2,159 1878
18,856,891 38,434,451
i
2019 2018

IPY IPY

943 932

940 922

2019 2018

IFY JrY

943 932

940 922
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk manapement
(a} Financial risk factors
The investment objective of the Fund iz to earn a high level of current incame and to maximize tolal
reums over @ full market cyele by investing primarily in povernment, corporenc and securitized fixed

ineome securities and insruments [ssuzd in the Dnited States,

The Fund is exposed to market price risk, cesh flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit and cusiody
risk, liguidity risk and currency risk,

The risks and the respective risk management policies employed by the Fund to manage these risks are
discussed below.

(b) Market price risk
Markel price rigk is the risk thel the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes
in markel prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific to the individual nstrement or
factors efecting all inslauments in the market,

All investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Fund's market price risk is managzd through (3)
deliberate securitics selection, and (§i) diversification of the investment portfolio,

At the yearfperiod end, the cwerell market exposures were ax follows:

2009 2018
%% af Y of
Fair value Cust net Fair value Cost net
5D USD  assets UsD LSD  asseis
Financial essets
Financtal assets at fair
value through profit
ar [o5s = Debt
securities 35,194,309 37468980 9830 37,198,510 37,652,424 96.79
Derivative financial
assets (nole 6) 156,640 - 040 695,636 - L8
Financial liahilities
Derivarive financial
liabilities (note 6) 2,541 - 0.0 5,320 - om
D —— —— - z m— = —_—
15
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market price visk (Continued)
Net market exposares

The following table shows the net market exposure the Fund has to various markets, mcorpocating the
underlying markel risk through all financial assets a1 fair value through profit or loss [except
derivatives) held by the Fund as at 31 December 2019 and 201 8;

2019 018
USD equivalent USD equivalent
Market exposure to

Austrolia - 310368
Bermucda 7,443 48813
Caneda 694,341 138,367
France 159,213 136,355
Gireat Brilain 664,216 6RO 05
Tretund 213,066 104,687
Mexico 3 122,498
Switzerland - 498,554
The United States of America 36,395,330 35,153.862

38,104,303 37,198,510

———————am

The following table shows the summary of the sector sxposizes within financial azsets at fair value
through profit or loss as al 31 December 2009 and 2018 are as fallows:

2019 2018

% of U o
Sectors exposed to net assels el asscts
Asser-Backed 6.07 13.85
Firance 13.56 16.37
[ndustrial 17.88 15,14
Morigage 39.07 26.31
Treasury 21.3% 24.61
Lliilities 0.33 0.51

98.30 96,79

There were no invesiments issued by the same issuer with market value exceeding 108 of the Fund's
net asset value at 31 Detember 2019 and 2018, As the Fund miainly invesls in debt securitics, the
sensitivity analysis of market price risk is disclosed in the interest rate sensilivity analysis in nole 4{5)
below.

14
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk management (Continued)

{b) Caszh flow and fair valoe interest rate risk

Irtcrest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will Tuctuate due 10 changes in
market interest Fafes.

Inlerest rate risk arises from the effects of Mlectuations in the prevailing levels of markets interest rates
on the f@ir value of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and Muture cash Mow, The Fund alwo holds cish
and cash cyuivalents and debt sceuritics that exposs the Fund to cash Now interest rate risk.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s expesure to interest rate risk. It includes the Fund's assets and
linkilitieg at fair values, categorized by the sarlier of centractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

A1 31 December 2009

Lp ta Mon-interest
1 year I-Syenrs  Ower S years bearing Total
UsD usD UsD UsD UsSD
Aggzers
Finuneial ssels at fair
walue thsgugh prolit or
hoss 19,462,493 7,202,924 11,528 892 - 38,194,509
Derivative financial
instroment - - - 156,640 156,640
Otler asszis - - - 375,157 375,157
Cash and cash equivalems 509,950 = = 2 506,960
Total assets 19,972,453 7.202,924 11,528,892 531,797 39,236,065
Liabilities
Derivative financial
inslrumssng - - - 2,541 2,541
Otbeer linbilities - . - ITe T 378,793
Met agaets attributanle 1o
unithabders - - - 38854732 38,854,732
Tatal liabilitics . - - 39236066 39236060
Total interest sensitiviry
gap 19,972,452 7,202,524 11,528,892
17
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk management (Continued)
(¢} Cash flow and fair value interest rate sk {Continped)
At 31 December 2018:

Up #a Noneinterest
1 year 1-5years  Ower 5 years bearing Total
usp UsD UsD Usp usp
Asgets
Investmenss af Sir value
Ueugh profit or loss 18,738,901 7,139,049 11,320,550 - 37,198,510
Darivative financial
ingtrument - - - 695,636 695,636
Other assets - = - 228,086 228,086
Cash and cash equivalencs 372067 . - - 373,007
Total azsets 15,110,908 T 13949 11,320, 560 923,722 38,494,259
Liabilitics
Dierfvative financial
imstn e * - - 5,320 5320
Onher labilities - - - 57,46 51,346
Mer asseds pnrirablc to
waitholders - - - IBA31,573 ARA3LSTE
Tuotal liahilities . . - 38494235 38,494,259
Total interest sencivity
gap 19,110,908 7,130,049 10,320,560

Asat 3 December 2019, should the relevant interest rates have loweredirisen by 100 basis points with
all other variables remaining constant, the incrense/decrease in net assels attributable to unitholders for
the yearperiod would amount to approocimately USDZ 270973 (2008 USD2246,313), ansing
substantizlly from the increass/decrease in market values of dett securities. In addition, USD304,633
(201%: USD266,200) would arise from the increase on interest income on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss &t floating rates, These represent management’s bast estimate of a reascaable
possible shift in the market inferest mre,

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the interest rate risk on cash and cash equivalents is considersd by
the Manager to be immaterial, Therefore, no interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is presented for the
yearfperiod ended 31 Decamber 2019 and 2013,

96/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 209

4 Financial risk management {Conlinwed )
{d} Credii and cusicdy risk

The Fund is exposed to aredit risk which is the risk that an issusr or counterparty will be unable or
unwilling to pay anounts in full when due

The main concentration of eredit risk 10 which the Fund is exposed arises from the Fund's nvestments
in debt securities and derivative linancial instruments. The Fund is also exposed o credit fsk on cash
end cash equivalents and assets held with custodien. The table below summarizes the assets placed with
benks and custodian at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

At 31 December 20019

Long-term Jesuer Source of
LsD Credil rating credil rating
Custodian
The Honzkong and Shanghai Banking
Corperation Limited 38,194,309 Ad- S&P
ivtive C
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 156,640 Ad- 5&P
Bank
‘The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited 500,960 Al S&P
At 3 December 2018
Long-term lssuer Snuree of

LsD Credit rating eredit rating

; 1
‘The Hengkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited 3TA9E510 Ad- S&P

Derivativie Counterparty
HSEBC Bank Heng Kong 6595 616 Abe S&P

Bank
The Hongkong and Shunghai Banking
Carporation Limited AT Ad- S&p

9
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2019

4. Financial risk management {Continued)
{d) Credit and custody risk {Confinved)

The Fund is exposed to credit risk that the issaers of the debt securities may not be able to repay the
principal amount at maturity and intercst. This oredil isk is mitgated es the debt securities held by the
Fumd are subject (o the requirements of (i) maximom helding of 10% of not asset value for any single
issuer, or (i) maximum exposure of 25% to any one industry, and () will maintgin an average
pertiolio credit guality of B or higher,

The introduction of HKFRS @ replaces the model used to caleulate impairmant under HEAS 3%, which
was based primarnily on incurred losses, with & model based o the éxpected credit losses. The scope of the
new model consistently includes all financial assers and liabilities that are recognized ar amortized cost.

The Fund nieasures credit risk and expected credit [osses using probability of default, sxposune at defauli,
and less given defaul, Management consider both historical analysis and forward locking information in
determining any expected credit loss. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, all amounts due from brokers and
cash and shert teem deposits are held with counterpanies with a credit mting of AA- or higher.
Management consider the protabiliny of definlt w be close o 2ero as these instruments have a low risk of
defanht end the counterparties have a strong cepacity to meet their contractual obligations I the near term,

As & result, no loss allewance has been recognized besed on 12-month expected credit losses as any such
impainnent would be insignificant to the Fund,

The table below summerizes the credit rating of the investment porifolio (of the actual tranche) by
eredit rating sourced from Standard and Poor's (S&PY:

Portfolio by roting category

Rating 219 018
Y of nel assets % of net assets

AAA 598 920
AAHAATAA- 1.99 286
A+ALA- 5.85 163
BREE+BEBRBBE- 21.3% 21.10
BER+ 062 0.26
B+ 018 -
M.E* el £5.74
Tuotal 9%.30 96,70
T e

The maximum exposure to credit risk at year/period end is the canrying emount of the financial assets
a5 shown on the siatement of financial position.

Mone of the assets is impaired nor post due but not impaired,

*The Manager may purchase unrated scourities {which are not rated by a rating agency) if the Manager
determines that the securily 5 of comparable quality 1o a rated Sscurity that may be purchased for the
account of the Fund. Unrated securitics may be loss liquid than comparable rated securities and involve
the risk that the Manoger may not accerately evaiuate the security’s comparative credit rating. Analysis
of the creditworhiness of izsuers of unrated securitics may be more complex than for issuers of higher-
quality fixed income securitics. To the extent that the Manager invests in varted seeurities, the Fund’s
sugeess in achieving ils imvestment objective may depend more henvily on the Manager's
creditworthiness analvas that if the Mangger invested exclusively i higher quality sated securitics.
The sub-investmenl Manager intends to kecp the average credit quality of the Fund, in principle in the
invesiment grade range (Bl o AAA inclusive), determined by the sub-investment Manager. In the
abgence of & cradit rating from S&T, the Manager would also consider credit ratings from Moody's o
Fitch.

20
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2019

4. Financial risk management (Coatinued)
(g] Oiffsetting and amownis subject o master netfing arrangements and similar agreements

As at 31 Decermber 2019 and 2018 the Fund was subjoct to master nolling amangements with its
derivalive counlerpariics. Ail of the derivative asscls and liebilitics of the Fund are held with
counterparties and the margin balance maintained by the Fund is for the purpose of providing collateral
on derivative positions.

The follewing tables present the Fund's financial assets and Hzbilities which are subject to affsenting,
enforceable master netting arrenpements and similar agreements by type of financial mstrument.

Financial asset= and Tiabilities subjed to offsetting, enforceable master nelting armangements and similar
agreements as at 31 December 2019

_ A _ B C=AB
(Gross ameunts of
recognized Met amounts of
financial liabilities inancial asscts
sel-off in the presenged in the
Gross amounts of recognized stateiment of  statement of financial
{inameinl assets  finencial position position
Descriplion
Derivative financial assets
- Forward foreign exchange
coniracts 156,640 - 156,640
156,540 = 156,640
Derivalive financial liabilitics
- Forward foreign exchange
contracts 2,541 - 2,541
2,541 - 2,541
= — o de— =- S—
21
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk mansgement (Continued)

(e} Offsetting and amounts subject to master ocltiog areangements aod similar agrecments

{Continued)
The following tables present by counterparty of financial msruneat:

Financia! assets subject to offSetting, enforeeible master nelling arvangements and saniler agreements
as ol 31 December 201%:

C=AR n E=C-D
Met amewnts of  Related amounts not s20-0fT in
financizl aszets  the statement of financial

presented m the pesitien
statement of i) (i) Met amount
fivancizl pasition Financial Cash
inslruments collateral
Counterparty
HSBC Bank Hong Kang 156,640 2,541 i 154,099
136,500 2,501 - 154,099

Financial habdlities subject to offsdtng, cnforceable master nelling arangements end similar
agreements as at 31 Dectmber 20015

C=A-B D E=CD
Met emounts of FRelated amounts not ==t-off in
financial licbilities  the statement of financiel

presented in the pusition

statement of i) D et amount

financial position Financizl Cash

inEtrLments collateral

Counierparty
HSEC Bank Hong Kong 2,541 2,541 . “
2,541 2,541 - .
T — ¥ e ———— T r—— e —
%
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FLUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2i DECEMBER 201%

4. Financial risk management (Continued)

(e} Oifsetting and amounis swbject to master nefting arrangements and similar agreements
{Continued)

Financial assets and liakilities subject fo offsetting, enforceable master nelling armangements and
similar agreemenis as at 31 December 2010 8:

A E C=A-B
Ciroes amounts of
recognized Met amounts of
fimancial labilitics financial ussels

set-off in the presented in the
Gross amounts of recognized statement of  statement of financial

financial assets  financial position position
ription
Derivative nancial assets
- Forwsrd foreign exchange
coniracts 595,636 - 695,636
093,630 . 645,036
——m T
Derivative financial liabilities
- Forward fovelgn exchangs
conlrads 5,320 - 5320
5,320 - 5,320
e e S
i3
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MANULIFE INVESTMEMNTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FURD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 1019

4, Financial risk management {Continued)

{e) Oifsetting and amounts subject fo master netting arrangements and similar agreements
{Continmed)

The following tables present by counterparty of financial mstrument:

Financial assets sublect to offsetting, enforceable master neming amrangements and similar agreements
as at 31 December 2018

C=A-B D E=CD
Mer amounts of  Related amounts not set-off in
financial assets  the stetement of financial
presented in the pesition

statement of i) Diii) Met amount
financial position Financial Cash
Msirumems collateral
Counterparty
HSBC Bank Hong Kang 605 836 5,220 - 690,316
93,636 3320 - 690,316

Financial liabilitizs subject to offeelling, enforceable masper netling wrangements and similar
agreements as at 31 December 2018:

C=A-B (b} E=(-D
Net amounis of  Related amounts not set-off in '
financanl lighilities  the stetement of financial
presented in the position

statement of i) DGy [vetamount
financial position Firancial Cash
MSruments collateral
Counterparty
HSBC Bank Hong Kong 53320 5,320 - -
5320 5,320 - -
— e

The Fund and its counlerparties have elected to settle all transactions on a groes basis, [lowever, each
party has the option 1o settle all open contracts on & net basis in the event of default of the other party.
As per the terms of the master netting agreement, an event of default ineludes the follewing:

¢  Blure by & party te make payment when due:
« f(ailure by & party to perform any ohligation reguired by the agreement; or
bankruptcy.
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MANULTFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2019

4. TFinancial risk management (Continued)

() Liquidity risk

Liguidiry risk is the risk that the Fond will encovnter difficulty in semling 2 lability, neluding a
redemption request,

In respect of structured securities, they may zlso be more volatile, less liguid and more difficult to
accurately price than less complex securitics. The timing of purchase and sale fransactions in debt
obligations may result in capital appreciation or depreciation because the value of debt obligations
genorally varies inverselv with prevailing interest rates,

‘The relatively small size of some of the securities markets, through which a Fund may invest may result
m significant price volatilicy and a potential lack of liquidity. Daily trading wolumes may be extremely
small in relation to the size of those stock markers resulting in difficulty in purchasing securities in any
quantity due to chronic lack of supply.

The table below analyzes the Fund's financial lakilities mto relevant mateity groupings based on the
remaining period at the yearipericd end date to the contractual maturity dote. The amounts in the table
are the contractual undiscoumted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal flieir camying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Liess than Over 3
3 menths months Total
UsD UsD UsD
At 31 December 201%
Derivative fnaneial lakilivics 2541 - 2.54]
Amounis payable on purchase of
invesiments 318,681 i 313,681
Other pavables 60,112 - §0,112
Net assets aftributable wo unitholders 38,854,752 - 38,854,732
Tuotal financial liahilitics 0,236,066 - 19,236,066
Less than Over 3
3 months months Total
usp LsD UsD
At 31 December 2018
Derivative fimancial [abilities 5320 E 5,120
Other payables 57346 - 37,348
et mssets ettributzble to unitholders 3B431.573 - 38431573
Total financial liabilities 38494 239 - 38,494 279
—————— m———— — —— T

All derivative financial insoenents entered into by the Fund are s=ttled on a net basis,

25
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MANULIVE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

4. Financial rish management (Continued)
() Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Fund manages its hguidity risk by investing predomimantly in debt securities that it expects to be
able to liquidate within | month or less. The following table illustrates the expected liquidity of assets

held by the Fund:
Less than Owver 3 Tatal
3 months mionths
UsD uUsD USD
At 31 Deccmber 209
Financial assets ot fair valee through
profit or loss 38,194,309 - 38,104,309
Derivetive financial assets | 56,540 - 156,640
Interest receivable on interest-bearing
securities 215,864 - 215,804
Interest receivalzle on deposits [ R o
Amwount receivable on sale of
invesiments 159287 - 159,287
Cash and cash equivalenis 509,960 - 500,960
Tutal assels 39,236,066 - 39,216,066
Less than Over3 Tatal
3 manths mvontlis
usp usD UsD
At 31 December 2018
Financial azsets at fair vafue through
profit o less 37,198,510 - 37,198,510
Dervative financial assuis 693,636 - 505 636
Interest receivable on interest-bearing
securities 228076 - 228,076
Interest receivable on deposits i - 1
Cash and cash equivalents 372,007 - 372,007
Total assets 38,494.239 - 33484239

26
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MANULIFE INVESTHMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk management (Continued}
(g} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments dencminated in other currencies will
fluetieate due to ehanpes in foreign cxchenge rates.

The Fund has monetry asseis and lizghilities denominaled in cormencies other han United Siates dollar,
the Fund’s functional and presentation currency. The Fund is therefore exposed to corrency risk, as the
value of the assets and labilities denominated in other corencies will Muciuate due 1o changes in
exchange rates, ‘The Manager will enter into forward foreign exchange contracts from time to time to
hedge against e floctuation in exchange rates, The Manager will enter into forward forcign exchange
contracis from time to time to hedge againsd the Aucluation in cxchange ralcs, Management eslimetes
the sepsitivity of the curmrency options to changes in foreipn exchange miex to not be material, it has
therefore not been included in the below analysis,

The table below summarizes the Fund’s net exposure to different major currencies:

2019 018

UsD LSy

equivalents equivalents

lapanese Yen 21,928.96] 21,068,183

Crross exposures to cumrency risk en forwerd foreign cxchange contracls cutstanding al the year/period
end are disclosed in note §,

The table below summarizes the impact on net asseis aributehle to unitholders as e result of
increases/decreases of foreipn cxchange refcs on the cxposures tabled above, to which the Fund i
ewposed.  The analysiz is based on the assumplion that the foreipn exchange mtes had
increased/deereased by the respective percentage with all other variables held constant. This represents
manaeinent s best estimate of o rensonable possible shift in the foreign exchange rate.

19 2018
Change in Change in
fnreizn foreixn
exchange Tmpact eichange Impact
rates UsSD rates usn
+i- +/- +i- +-
Jnpanesz Yen 5% 1,096,243 % 1,053,409

r
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk management {Continued)
(hy Fair value cstimation

The fair value of financial assets and labilities traded in active markets (such as trading securities) are
based on quoted markes prices a0 the close of rading on the year/period end date. The Fund usad the
Jast traded market price as its fai valuation inputs for both financial assets and Anancial fiabilities,

An active market is & market in which transactions for the asset or licbility take place with sufticient
frequency and velume o provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

A finencil instroment is regarded as quoted in an oetive market if quoted prices are readily and
regulerly available from an exchangs, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing serviee, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actusl end regularly coturrng market transactions on on ann's
length basis.

The carrying valed less mpairment provision of other receivable: and payables are assuned to
Approsimate their feir velues. The fair velue of financial ligbilities for disclosure purposes s cstimeted
by diseountiog the fiure controctual cash Dews ot the current market interest rate that is available to
the Fued for similar tinancial instruments.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

= Quated prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity ean
access gt the measurement date {Level 1

+  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that zre obeervable for the asser or liability,
either directly or indirectly (Level 2).

«  Inpuls for the asset or lability thet ere unobservable inputs (Level 3

The level in the fair velue hicrarchy within which the fir value measurement is ealeporized in ils
entirely iz determined on the bosis of the lowest level input that s sianificant (o the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an inpul is assessed against the fair
valug measwement i its entirety. I a fair valoe measurement uses observable inpuis that require
gignificant adjustment based on unebservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3 measwrement.
Assessing the significance of o particuler Input to the fair value measurement I its entirety requires
Judpement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determinetion of what constitutes “observable™ requires significant judgemeaint by the Fund, The
Fund considers observable data to be that market dota that is readily available, regularly distributed oe
updated, reliohle and verilizble, not propeistary, and provided by independent sources tal are actively
involved in the relevant markel

The following table analyzes within the fair value hierarchy the Fund's investments {by class)
measured at fair value at 31 December 2019 and 2018, All fur velue messurements disclosed nre
recirring fir value measurements.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED [INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

4. Financial risk manapemest (Continued)
(b} Fair value estimaation (Continued)

At 31 December 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Assels usp usp UsD Ush
= Dbt securitics - 38,194,300 - 38,194,309
- Derivative financial asssts - 156,640 - 156,640
Total assels - 38,350,949 - 38,350,943
Liabilities
- Drerivative financial linbilities - 2,541 - 2,541
Total labilities - 310 - 2,541
AL 31 Decemnber 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels usD usp UsD usD
- Dbt securities - 37,198,510 - 37.098,510
- Desivative financial assats . 695,636 = 595,616
Tolal assets - 37,894,146 - 37894, 146
Liabilitjes
- Derivative financial liabilities - 310 - 5,320
Total labilities - 5,320 - 5,320

Investments, wiost values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified within
level 1, include fisted derivitives, The Fund does not adjust the quoted peice for thess instrusments,

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are net congidercd to be active but are valued based on
fquoted marke! prices, dealer guotalions or allemative pricing sources supported by observable fnpuls
are dassified within level 2. These include guoted debt securitics and forward foreign exchange
contracts. As level 2 investments include pesilions thal are not iraded in aclive markets and'ar re
subject 1o fransfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andfor non-
transfergbility, which are generally based on available marke: information. As st 31 December 2019
and 2018, the Fund held investments in quoted debt securities and forward foreign exchange contracts
which were classified in Jevel 2.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unchservahle inputs, 2s they trada infrequently,
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Fund did not held any investments classified in level 3. Az at 31
December 2009 and 2018 there are no transfers batwaen levels in the fair value hisrarchy,

The aseets and liahilitics of the Fund in the statement of lneneial position at the reporting date,

cost; their carrying values are a rensonable approximation of fair value,

29
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 DECEMBEER 2019

5. Net gains/(losses) on Mnancial asseiz at fair value through profil or loss and derfvative financial

instruments
2019 201%
UsD USEy
et realized gains/{losses) on financial assets at fir value through
profit or loss and derivative finencial insruments 1,04, 308 (2,081,663)
Met chiange in unrealized goins/losses on financial assets ot fir valuce
threwph profit ar loss and dervative financial instruments 410,377 126,485
1.455,185 (1,955, 174)
6. Derivative financial instruments
e 2018
usD Uso
Dreriverive financial instruments
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 156,640 693,636
Total derivalive Minarcial pssels 136,640 695,636
- Forward foreign exchange contracis 2541 5,320
Total derivetive fnancial lizbilitics 2,541 5320

The details of forward forelgn exchange contracts outstanding as at 31 Decemnber 2019 and 2018 are
surnmarized below:

At 31 December 201%
Contract to deliver in exchange for, Seftlemen: date Fajr value
USD
Open contracts:
LSD22 289,059 IPY2,434,772,136 31 January 2020 156,640
| 55640
IPYS6,075,000 LISDs 14,1597 31 January 2020 {2,541)
(2.541)
———

30
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

6. Derivative financial instruments [cantinmed)

At 31 December 2018

Contract to deliver Iz exchange for Settlemen: date Fair valug
Ush
(Chpen conracts:
USD21,282.325 JPY2 402859 603 31 Janoary 2019 A05, 636
625,636
TPY 24,000,000 USD214,142 31 January 2019 (5,320)
{5,320
7. Taxatien

{a) The Cayman Islands

The Manzger has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman lslands thar, in
accordance with Section 81 of the Truss Law {2011 Revisian) of the Cayman [slands, for a period of
50 years from the date of the creation of the Trust, no faws of the Cayman Islands thereafier enacted
imposing any tax o duty to be levied on ineome or on capilal assets, pains or appreciation or any fax in
the nature of estate duly or inheritance tax will apply to any property comprised in or income arising
under the Trust or to the Trustee or unitholders in respect of any such property er income, Mo stamp
duty iz levied in the Cayman [slands on the ransfer or redemption of units,

Although the Trust is not subjeel to tax in the Cayman Islands, the Trust may be liable for taxes which
may he withheld at sosrce in ofher countries in respect of income or gains derived from its investments,
Income that is subject 1o such tax is recognized gross of the taxes and the corresponding withholding is
recopnized as Ex eXpense.

{b) Hong Kong
The Fund would only be exposed wo Hong Koog profits mx it

s i is carrying on a trade or business in llong Kong either on its own account or through amy person
m Ilong Kong as an agent who has the discretionary avthority 1o negotiate and canclude on Behalf
of the Fund and reguiar exercises the sutherity to do se; and;

= Itis not exempted under e Eevenve (Profits Tux Exemption for Offshore Funds) Ordinenee 2004,
the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (MNa. 2} Oedinance 23 end ITnland Revenue (Profits Tax
Exemption for Funds) (Amendment) Crdinanee 2019 (collectively the "Ordinances”)

ITthe Fund is not exempt under Be Ordinances and is treated as carrying on 8 rade or business in Hong
Kong, a lisbility 1o profits tax, currently at the rate of 16.5%, would arise in respect of any profits
which arise in or are derived from Hong Kong and which are net capitl in nature or exempl ender the
Infand Revenue Ovdinance. Mo provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Manager
beliewes that no such tax exposure existed 21 31 December 2009 and 2018,

8. Tranzactions with Relaled Parties

The following is a summary of sipnificnt related party transactions/iransactions entered inte during the
year/period hetween the Fumd and the Trustee, the Manager and thelr related parties. Related parties are
those as defined in HKAS 24 “Related party disclosures”. All mansactions entered imo during the
vear/perind between the Fund and the related partics were camied out in the normal course of business and
on nomal commercial ferms.

3
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

8. Transactions with Relaied Pariics {continued)
{a) Tmvestment management fee

The Manager is entitled (0 receive & monagement foe (as a % per annum. of the nol asset wvalug),
currently af the rate of up 1o 0.6% per annun of not asset value for all elass of units, ecorved dailv and

paveble maonthly in arrears,

For the yearfperiod ended 31 Decomber 2019 and 2018, the Manaper was entitled to management fee of
USD99,333 (2008: USDO0,630). Al 31 December 2019, a management fee of USDEI2E (2018:
UJSD8,052) was payable o the Menager.

(b)) Trustee, custody and sdminisiration fees

The Trustee is entitled to reccive a trustee, custody and adminigiretion fees which are acerued at each
viluation day and payable meathly in amears and caleulated up 1o 0.1% pa annum of the net asset
value of the Fund,

Trustee, custody and administration fees ave inclusive of fees payable plus out-of-pocket expenses
(incheding any sub-cusiody charpes) and transaction costs.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Trostes was entitled to trustes fee of USDI2,000 (2018:
USD12 . 598). At 31 December 2019, a trustee fee of USDO9S (20018: USDI9E) was payable to the
Trusiee.

For the yerfperiod ended 31 December, the Trostes was entithed to fees as follows,

Y 018

Fee enfitlement Fee entitlement

Ush Usp

Safs custody and processing fes 21,441 19,442
Trustes faes 12,000 12,998
Valumion fee 50,000 33,800
Transaction handling fee 7,184 6,760
Accouniting and other professional fess 3,500 3,000
Ciher operating expenses 12072 8,929
Texal 106,197 104,929

As at 31 December 2018, a mrustes, custody and administration fees of USDI0,679 (2018: USD3, 744)
was piyable 1o the Trustes,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENTS TRUST - US CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

o Distributions

Distributions to Class A — Div (JPY Hedged) and Class A — Div (JPY Urhedged) unitholders will first be
paid out of the meome (which may incliode capital gaing) which are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income, thereafter ou of the capital of e Fund aitributable to the relevant class of unils of

ihe Fund,

The distributions to Class A = Div [JPY Hedged) and Class A ~ Div (JPY Unhedged) unitholders were
declared monthly and wene automatically reinvested in additionz] imits of the same class and were issued ar
2 subscription price on the reinvestment date, For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Iatest distribusien
rate was JPY3 (2008: JPY3) per unit and JPY4 2008: JPY'S) per unit for Class A = Div (JPY Hedged) and
Class A — Div (JPY Unhedged), respectively.

219 2018
LIS UsD
Diistribution for the year'period ended 31 December
- Class A — Div (JPY Hedged) 865,210 676,807
- Class A — Div (MY Unhedged) §72,761 B19,985

Tota! distribution 1,737.980 1,506,792

1. Approval of fingncial stalements

The financial stutements were approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 28 April 20200

33
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2020 30

2020 30
32,694,158 3,522,469
0 0
178,310 19,211
0 0
459,271 49,482
342,421 36,892
33,674,160 3,628,054
183,722 19,794
465,605 50,164
36,077 3,887
685,404 73,845
32,988,756 3,554,209

2,195,864.95
1,480,539.23

970
967
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2020 2020 30
2020 2020 30
651,088 70,148
305 33
625 67
922,052 99,342
497,413 53,591
0 0
28,543 3,075
2,100,026 226,257
(44,687) (4,815)
(9,673) (1,042)
(5,952) (641)
(20,998) (2,262)
(25,000) (2,694)
(3,952) (426)
(1,186) (128)
(2,126) (229)
(4,849) (522)
(118,423) (12,759)
1,981,603 213,498
(780,867) (84,131)
1,200,736 129,367
(3,274) (353)
1,197,462 129,015
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2020 30
2020 2020 30

38,854,732 4,186,209

1,172,609 126,337

780,867 84,131

(9,016,914) (971,482)

(7,063,438) (761,015)

1,197,462 129,015

32,988,756 3,554,209

115/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

116/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 25

2020

2,174,243,565

44,254,563

2,129,989,002

2,195,865

970
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HSBC
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
HSBC 2 3 17
17/F Tower 2 & 3, HSBC Centre , 1 Shum Mong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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2020 31 1,750 24,325
1,396,023,143
301,000,000
275
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2020 30

741.31

93.42

13 834.74
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2019 12 31

2019 2018
8 - - - -
20 25,280,992 351,406 - -
9,26 85,869,947 1,193,592 72,033,276 1,001,263
10 316,569,569 4,400,317 290,032,569 4,031,453
11 1,123,135,816 15,611,588 1,123,135,816 15,611,588
1,550,856,324 21,556,903 1,485,201,661 20,644,303
13 65,561,388 911,303 48,479,644 673,867
14 5,451,434 75,775 4,177,693 58,070
15 72,203,711 1,003,632 98,324,038 1,366,704
16 20,169,157 280,351 - -
17 219,027,869 3,044,487 229,193,310 3,185,787
382,413,559 5,315,548 380,174,685 5,284,428
18 22,779,194 316,631 - -
19 229,472,084 3,189,662 190,854,340 2,652,875
20 12,636,114 175,642 - -
15 61,595,504 856,178 96,964,424 1,347,805
326,482,896 4,538,112 287,818,764 4,000,681
55,930,663 777,436 92,355,921 1,283,747
20 13,050,356 181,400 - -
1,593,736,631 22,152,939 1,577,557,582 21,928,050
21 1,672,944,843 23,253,933  1,599,707,843 22,235,939
22 5,951,047 82,720 5,308,410 73,787

(85,159,259)  (1,183,714)  (27,458,671) (381,676)
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2019 12 31

2019 2018
4 646,758,275 8,989,940 677,052,061 9,411,024
4 71,558,815 994,668 97,019,585 1,348,572
(39,266,719) (545,807)  (36,862,079) (512,383)
(551,178,593) (7,661,382)  (518,344,854) (7,204,993)
(184,563, 225) (2,565,429)  (151,280,703) (2,102,802)
5,20 (1,009,141) (14,027) - -
5 (57,700,588) (802,038) 67,584,010 939,418
. i B} _ _
(57,700,588) (802,038) 67,584,010 939,418
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2019 12 31

1,583,990, 043 22,017,462 5,083,427 70,660 (95,042,681) (1,321,093) 1,494,030,789 20,767,028
15,717,800 218,477 - - - - 15,717,800 218,477

- - 224,983 3,127 - - 224,983 3,127

- - - - 67,584,010 939,418 67,584,010 939,418
1,599,707,843 22,235,939 5,308,410 73,787 (27,458,671) (381,676) 1,577,557,582 21,928,050
73,237,000 1,017,994 - - - - 73,237,000 1,017,994

- - 642,637 8,933 - - 642,637 8,933

- - - - (57,700,588) (802,038)  (57,700,588) (802,038)
1,672,944,843 23,253,933 5,951,047 82,720 (85,159, 259) (1,183,714) 1,593,736,631 22,152,939




5, 20
5, 20
22

21

17

17

EDINETOOOO

o o =<0 )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31
2019 2018

(57,700,588) (802,038) 67,584,010 939,418
(1,671,435) (23,233) (700,112) (9,732)
1,009,141 14,027 - -
12,640,497 175,703 - -
642,637 8,933 224,983 3,127
(45,079, 748) (626,608) 67,108,881 932,813
(13,836,671) (192,330) (9,916,663) (137,842)
(17,081,744) (237,436) 45,489,164 632,299
(1,273,741) (17,705) 1,953,656 27,156
26,120,327 363,073 (71,770, 485) (997,610)
(20,169, 157) (280, 351) - -
22,779,194 316,631 - -
38,617,744 536,787 (17,942,857) (249, 406)
(35, 368,920) (491,628)  (14,256,728) (198,169)
(45,292,716) (629,569) 664,968 9,243
1,671,435 23,233 700,112 9,732
(1,009,141) (14,027) - -
(44,630,422) (620, 363) 1,365,080 18,975
(26,537,000) (368,864)  (15,717,800) (218,477)
(26,537,000) (368,864)  (15,717,800) (218,477)
73,237,000 1,017,994 15,717,800 218,477
(12,235,019) (170,067) - -
61,001,981 847,928 15,717,800 218,477
(10,165,441) (141,300) 1,365,080 18,975
229,193,310 3,185,787 227,828,230 3,166,812
219,027,869 3,044,487 229,193,310 3,185,787
219,027,869 3,044,487 229,193,310 3,185,787
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2019 12 31
1.
33 16
2.1
www.manulife.com
2.2
16
28
| 23
2015 2017
16
2019 2016 17 |
16
16
16
16
12
2019 3.23
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2019
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2019

131/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad
2019

15

32

132/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

133/239



12

EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

134/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

135/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2002 11
22

2002 11
2005 2005

136/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

137/239



EDINETOOOO
o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

138/239

2019 2018
1,671,435 700,112
1,074,938,070 1,100,236,836
(429,851,230) (423,884,887)
646,758,275 677,052,061
6,556,709 37,062,884
58,752,006 58,800, 655
7,533,150 1,878,859
(1,283,050) (722,813)
71,558,815 97,019,585
718,317,090 774,071,646
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2019 2018
506,772,156 484,181,061

19,185,123 17,774,155

25,221,315 16,389,638

79,009,059 74,549,210

39,266,719 36,862,079

12,640,497 -

1,038,253 1,417,659

1,009,141 -

2019 2018

225,811 68,034

18,168,973 19,970,012

18,394,784 20,038,046

2018
2019
% %
(57,700,588) 67,584,010

(9,520,597) 16.5 11,151,362 16.5
(1,357,618) 2.4 (6,230,894) 9.2)
4,393,338 (7.6) 2,761,311 4.1
6,484,877 (11.2) i, i
i - (7,681,779)  (11.4)
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7,720,276 951,626 8,671,902
(7,720,276) (951,626) (8,671,902)
7,720,276 951,626 8,671,902
(7,720,276) (951,626) (8,671,902)

2019 2018
825,000 825,000
560,000 560,000

84,484,947 70,648,276

85,869,947 72,033,276
2019 2018

316,569,569 290,032,569

485,536
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331,500,000 100

7,374,989 100

100,000 100
6,779,431 2018 632,102

108,875,255 2018 102,095,824
11,822,890 2018 8,025,093
23,984,888 2018 12,161,998
2019 2018
1,123,135,816 1,123,135,816
49 49 49
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12.

480,246,701

2018

415,890,505

142/239

2019 2018
685,938,863 654,346,531
240,361,958 241,689,146
926,300, 821 896,035,677

12,168,080 7,603,015
102,027,793 75,844,603
102,027,793 75,844,603

2019 2018

836,441,109 827,794,089
836,441,109 827,794,089
49% 49%
409,856,143 405,619,104
713,279,673 717,516,712
1,123,135,816 1,123,135,816
272,762,184 302,069,313

23,331,121 34,066,153

11,733,404 7,826,581
(13,551,456) (19,220,978)

33,904,356 39,500,619

2,841,110 (509,832)
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13.
2019 2018
57,948,204 44,388,083
- 1,690,000 -
920,036 -
5,003,148 4,091,561
65,561,388 48,479,644
)
)
2018
2019 12 31
2019 12 31
0% 0% 0% 0%
61,176,492 3,988,936 395,960 65,561,388
14.
2019 2018
574,727 577,016
4,876,707 3,600,677
5,451,434 4,177,693
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15.
2019 2018
- - 4,173,603
- 2,835,873 485,536
- 63,068,885 93,664,899
- 6,298,953 -
72,203,711 98,324,038
- 27,973,986 53,908,960
- 932,530 -
- 100,000 -
- 32,588,988 42,904,755
- - 150,709
61,595,504 96,964,424
16.
20,169,157 2018
17.
2019 2018
219,027,869 229,193,310
18.
2019 2018
12,713,297 -
10,065,897 -
22,779,194 -
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2019 2018

781,564 933,255
228,690,520 189,921,085

229,472,084 190,854,340

37,921,489
(12,640,497)

25,280,992

2019

37,921,489
1,009,141
(13,244,160)

25,686,470

12,636,114
13,050,356

2019

1,009,141
12,640,497

13,649,638
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21.
2019 2018
1,318,498,343
2018 s o a6s 943 1,371,944 ,843 1,298,707,843
301,000,000
20180000000 301,000,000 301,000,000
1,672,944 ,843 1,599,707,843
2018 1,229,543,543  1,282,990,043  1,282,990,043
15,717,800 15,717,800 15,717,800
ggig 1231 1,245,261,343  1,298,707,843  1,298,707,843
73,237,000 73,237,000 73,237,000
2019 12 31 1,318,498,343  1,371,044,843  1,371,044,843
2017 23 2018 27 15,717,800
15,717,800
2019 2019 29 46,800,000
46,800,000
2019 2019 2 2019 11 22 15,660,000
10,777,000 15,660,000 10,777,000
22.
10

73,600,000
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2019 2018
20.29 254,629 19.25 249,433
22.60 44,830 24.73 19,037
17.57 (52,497) - -
19.48 (26,613) 37.71 (13,841)
12 31 20.12 220,349 18.65 254,629
2019
*
2020 2031 22.60 44,830
2019 27 2030 27 24.73 19,037
2018 28 2029 28 24.61 17,690
2017 23 2026 23 17.59 50,720
2016 24 2025 24 22.02 30,896
2015 25 2024 25 21.20 13,726
2014 19 2023 19 15.52 13,926
2013 21 2022 21 12.64 20,119
2012 22 2021 22 18.91 3,437
2011 23 2020 23 19.48 5,968
220,349
2018
*
2019 27 2030 27 24.73 19,037
2018 28 2029 28 24.61 17,690
2017 23 2026 23 17.59 50,720
2016 24 2025 24 22.02 30,896
2015 25 2024 25 21.20 13,726
2014 19 2023 19 15.52 18,568
2013 21 2022 21 12.64 26,825
2012 22 2021 22 18.91 13,747
2011 23 2020 23 19.48 25,929
2010 15 2019 15 15.67 37,491
254,629
*
2019 12 31 642,637 2018 224,983
5,640,052 2018 994,007
2019 12 31 24,578,678 2018 16,164,654
2019 12 31 22,517,660 2018 8,809,539
23.
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2019 2018
(
- 16,558,128 57,614,380
- 13,380,897 14,579,359
- 459,806,417 588,486,379
(
- 39,536,884 36,293,822
- 6,896,585 6,348,464
- 482,947 986,359
- 232,798,909 256,202,578
(
- 44,684,157 38,319,836
- 58,705,485 58,782,003
- 25,581,346 28,033,391
( 79,009,059 74,549,210
(
24,189,058 36,627,167
(
- 2,371,211 2,638,241
- 13,399,917 3,468,543
- - 9,227,190

2019 12 31
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2019 2018

18,394,784 20,038,046
18,394,784 20,038,046

2018 12 31

2018

18,533,715

74,134,860
92,668,575

25.

2019

- 85,870 85,870
65,561 - 65,561
2,257 - 2,257
72,204 - 72,204
20,169 - 20,169
219,028 - 219,028

379,218 85,870 465,089

22,779
229,472
61,596

313,847
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26.

2018

- 72,033 72,033
48,480 - 48,480
2,269 - 2,269
98,325 - 98,325
229,193 - 229,193
378,267 72,033 450,300
190,854
96,965
287,819

2019 2018 2019 2018
84,485 70,648 84,485 70,648
825 825 825 825
560 560 560 560
85,870 72,033 85,870 72,033
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84,485 - 84,485
- 825 825

560 - 560
85,045 825 85,870
70,648 - 70,648
- 825 825

560 - 560
71,208 825 72,033

2018
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2019
12 31 219 2018 229
1.17 2018 1.33

2019
22,779 - - - 22,779
- 203,377 26,095 - 229,472
61,596 - - - 61,596
84,375 203,377 26,095 - 313,847
2018
- 168,406 22,448 - 190,854
96,965 - - - 96,965
96,965 168,406 22,448 - 287,819
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2019 2018

5% (112) (112) 56 191 191

56 60 60 5 - -

56 (496) (496) 56 486 486

5% (130) (130) 5 - -

5% (914) (914) 56 857 857
2019

1,968 1,206 2,876 - 4 6,054

(4,214) - (12,805) (2,598)  (18,287)  (37,904)

(2,246) 1,206 (9,929) (2,598)  (18,283)  (31,850)
2018

171 - - - - 171

(3,986) - (9,728) - (17,136)  (30,850)

(3,815) - (9,728) - (17,136)  (30,679)
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2019 12 31
2018 12 31
) 3,000,000
385,000 2019 12 31 2018 12
31
28.
2019 12 31 378,678,904,701 2018 379,269,273,957
2019 12 31 76,307,340 2018
84,309,970 1,074,938,070 2018 1,100,236,836
29.
10,000,000 77,524,800 2020 16 2020 21
1,672,944,843 1,750,469,643
2020 3
30.
31.

2020 27
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN A%
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2019

MON-CURRENT ASSETS

Plant and equipment

Right-of-use assels

Financial investments at fair value ihrough profit or loss
Invesiment in subsidiaries

Investment in a joint venturs

Tutal non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Aceounts recelvable

Prepayments, deposits and other recervables
Pue from related parties

Client bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable
Accrued liabilities

Lease liabilites

Due 1o related parlies
Total current liabilites

NET CUBRENT ASSSETS

MOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
MET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital

Share option reserve
Accumulated loss

Total equity

2019

Motes HES
X =
20 25,280,992
9,26 85,869,947
10 316,569,560

1 1,123,135.816
1,550.856,324

2018
HKS

72,033,276
290,032,564
_1.123,135.816

1.485,201,661

13 65,561,388 48,479,644
14 5451434 4,177,693
15 72,203,711 98,324,038
16 20,169,157 .
17 219,027,869 220,193,310
382,413,559 380,174,685

18 22,779,194 .
19 229.472,084 190,854,340
20 12,636,114 -
15 61,595,504 96.964 424
326,482, 896 287,818,764
55.930,663 92,355,921

20 13,050,356 =
1.503,736,631 1,577,557.582
1,672,944,843 1,599, 707,843

22 5,951,047 5,308,410
(85,159.259) (27.458,671)

1,593.736.631

1,577,557.582

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemcnis,

7
Michael Floyd Dommermuth
Drirector

~i
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LDMITED (FORMERLY ENOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2019

me 2018
Notes HES HKS
REVENUE 4 646,738,275 677,052,061
Other income and gains 4 71,558,815 87,019,585
Occupancy costs (39,266,719) (36,362,079
Salaries and olher stafl costs, direstors'
remuneration inclusive (551,178,503) (518,344, 854)
Other operating expenses (184,563,225 {151,280,703)
Finance costs on lease liabilities s (1,009,141
{LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5 {57,700, 588) 67,584,010
Income tax charge 7 - L
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (37,700,588) 67,584,010

The accompanying ootes are an integral part of these financial staterments,

156/239



EDINETOOOO

o o =<0 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 3] December 2019

Al I January 2018

Share issuance

Share option amrangements
Totzl comprehensive
MO

for the year

At 3] December 2018 and
1 Jamsary 2019
Share issuance
Share option armngements
Total comprebensive
Fhilalalni i
for the year

At 31 Decembor 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnencial statements.

Motes

21
22

Share
Share option Relained Texal
capital reserve Profits equity
HES HKS HES HK%
1,583,990,043 5,083,427 (95,042)681) 1,494,030, 780
15,717,800 - - 15,717,800
- 224,983 - 224,983
- - 67,584,010 67,584,010
1,500 707 842 5308410 (2TASE6T1)  1,577,557.582
73,237,000 - - 73,237 000
- 642,637 - 542637
- 2 (37,700,588)  (37,700,588)
1,672,044 843 5951047 [#5,159,2597  1,593,736,631
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MAMNULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY ENOWN AS
MAMULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2019
Notes 2019 2018
HES HKS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / Profit before tax {57,700,588) 67,584 010
Adjustments for: )
Intercst income 4 (1,671.435) (700,112}
Interest on Jease lizhililics 5,20 1,002,141 -
Deepreciation of right-of-use asset 5,20 12,640,497 -
Ehare option expense 2 642,637 224,943
(45,079,748) 67,108,881
lpcrease in financial investments at fair value
through profit or loss (153,836,671) {0.916,6a3)
{[ncrease) / decrease in accoumts receivable (17.081,744) 45,489,164
{Increasc) /£ decrease in prepayinents, deposits and
other receivebles (1,273, 41) 1,953,656
Decrease / (increase) in due from related parties 26,120,327 (71,770,485)
Increase in client bank balances (20,169,157} -
Increase in accounts payable 22.779,194 -
Increase / (decrease) in accrued linbilities 38,617.744 (17,042,857
Decrease in due to related parties (35,368,920 (14,256,728)
Cash flows (usad in) / penerated from operations [45.202.716) 464,968
Interest received 1,671,435 00,112
Interest on lease Habilities (1,009,141} -
Het cash flows {used in) / penerated from operating
aetivities (44630 422) 1,365,080
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital injection o a subsidiary (26,537,000) (15,717,800)
Wet cash Oows used in investing activitics (26,537,000} (15,717.800)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issus of shares .l | 73,137,000 15,717,800
Principal portion of lease liabilites {12235,019) -
Net cash flows penerated from fnancing activities 61,001,921 15,717,200
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (10,165,441} 1,365,080
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 17 229,193,210 227 828,230
CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 219,027,869 229,193,310
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank halances 17 215027 868 229,193,510

The accompanying notes are an integral patt of these financial statements.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG RONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMNG KONG) LIMITED)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

L CORPORATE INFORMATION

MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (the "Company™) is o
limited lizbility compeny incorporated in Hong Kong. [ts registered office is located at 16/F, Lee
Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong,

During the year, the Company's principal activities conslsted of desling in securities, dealing in
futsres contracts, advising on securities, advising on futures conmlracls and providing asset
management services,

In the opimion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the Company is Manulife
Investment Managemen! Intemational Holdings Limited (formerly known as Monulife Asset
Manapemen! International Holdings Limited), which is incorporated in Barbados, and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Manulife Financial Corporation ("MFC"), which is incorporated
in Canada and its shares are listcd on the Toronto Stock Exchenge.

i1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements bave been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HEKFRS") (which include all Hong Kong Finsncial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HEAS") and Interpretations} issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HEKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
IHong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for finaneial ivestrents at fair value through profit or loss, which have been measured et fair
velue. They are presented in Hong Kong dollars which is also the Company's functional cumeney,

Consolidated financial stetements have not been prepered and the equity method has not been applied
in respeet of the Company's interests in a joint venture ss the Company is & wholly-owned subsidiary
of MFC, which prepares conzolidated financial statements in secordance with International Financial
Reporting Standarés. The consolidated financial statements of MFC  are  available at
wwrw. manulife.com,

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Company has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first ime for the current
year's fimancial stotements,

Amendments io HEFRS 9 LPrepayment Peatures with Negarive Compensation
HEFRE 16 Leager

Amendments 1o HEAS 28 Long-term Inreresis in Assaciates and Joint Venres
TR IFRIC) Tt 23 Uncertainty aver Income Tax Treatmenis

Annual Improvemenis 10 HKFRSz Amendments to a mmber of HEFRSs
2013-2017 Cyele

10
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3] December 2019

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Except for those disclosed below, the adoption of these new standards has no significant impact on the
Company’s results and financial position nor any substantial changes in the Company’s accounting policies.

(&) HKFRS 16 "Leases"

Effective January 1, 2019, the Compacy adopted HKFRS 16 Leaser which was issued in January
2016 and replaces HEAS 17 Leases and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an arrangement
containg a lease. HKFRS 16 sets out principles for the recognition, measurement, pressntation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contracl. The standard brings most leases on-balenee sheet
under a single model and eliminates the previcus classifications of operating and finance lsases,
Exemptions to this treatment are for lease contracts with low value assels or leases with durstion of
less them one year. Lessor accounting largely remains unchanged with previous classifications of
opereting and finance leases continuing.

The Company adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method with no restatement af
comperative information. The Company applied the practical expedient of not reviewing lease
¢lassification under HEKFRS 16 for contracts nol previously classified as leuses, In addition, the
Company has elected to apply short-lerm lease secounting for contracts with lease terms ending
within twelve months.

The weighted average increments) bomrowing rate the Company adopted as at Jamuary 1, 2019 in
caleulaiing the lease liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position was 3,238,

() Amendments to HEKAS 28 "Losg-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventares”

Amendments 1o HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in en
gasociate or jeinl venture to which the equity method is applied and does not include long-term
interests that in substance form part of the net investment in the agsociate or joint venture, to which
the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an eatity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HEKAS 28,
including the impaiment requircments under HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interesis.
HICAS 28 15 then applied to the nct investment, which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint veature apd impairment of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture, The Company assessed its business model for its long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures upon adaoption of the amendmients on | January 2019 and conchuded that
the long-term interests in associates and joint ventares continued ta be measured st amortised cost in
accardance with HEFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impael on the finanecial
position or perfommance of the Company.

11
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KOMNG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

1.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTENG POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (sontinued)
(e} HE(TFRIC)-Int 23 "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

HE(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for ineome taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 {often refermed to as “uncertain
tax posilions"}. The inlerpretation does not apply to taxes or levies cutside the scope of HEAS 12,
nor doss it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associnted with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (1) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments seperately; (ii) the assumptions an entily makes about the examination of tax treatments by
taxation autherities; (7if) how an entity detennines taxable profits or tax losses, 1ax bases, unused tax
losses, unnsed tax credits and e rates; and (iv) how an enlity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adeption of the interpretation. the Company considered whether it has any
uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the
Company"s lzx complismee and transfer pricing study, the Company determined that it is probable that
its transfer pricing policy will be accepted by the tax authorities.  Accordingly, the interprefation did
net have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company. The Company adopted
the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation does not have any significant impact on the
Company's financial siatements,

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company has not applied the fallowing new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
rot vet effective, in these financial statements,

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Defimition of o Business'

Amendments to HEFRS 8, futerest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HEAS 3% and HKFRS 7

Amendments W HKFRS 10 Sale or Comributon of Assets between an lnvestor and iis Associaie op
and HEAS 28 (2011) Joint Ventwre'

Amendments 1o HEKAS | Definition of Marerial'
and HEAS §

! Effoctive for annual perinds bepinning on or after 1 Jannary 7020
* Nomandatory effective date yel determined but available for adoptian

Further information elout those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Company is
described below:
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

23 [SSUED BUT MOT YET EFFECTIVE HOMG KOMNG FINAMCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Contmued)

(2) Amendments 1o HIKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of a bosiness.
The mpendments clarily that for an intezrated set of activites and assefs to be considered a
business, it must include, st a minimum, an inpul and a subslantive process that together
significantly confribute to the ability to create oulpul. A business can exist withou! including all
of the inputs and processes needed in create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether macket participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outpuls.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly conmribute to the ability to create cutputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
ather income from ordinary activities. Furthenmore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an sequired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value concenitration test
to permit a simplified asscesment of whether an acquired el of activities and assets iz not a
business. The Company expects to adopt die amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020,
Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that oceur on or afler the
date of first application, the Company will not be affected by thess amandments on the dute of
lransition.

(b) Amendments to HEFRS 9, HEAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of interbank offered rate
reform on financial reporting.  The amendments provide teroporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the peried of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional
information 1o investors about their hedgine relatonships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments are effective for anoval pericds beginning on or after | January
2020. Eurly application is permitted. The amendments are net expected to have any significant
impact on the Company’s linancial statcments.

(¢} Amendments to FIKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) oddress an inconsistency between the
requirements ic HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets belween an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of & gain or loss when the sale or contribution of 2ssefs between an investor and its
associale or joinl venture constilules a business. For a wansaction involving assels that do not
constitute 2 business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
prafit or loss oniy to the extent of the unrelated investor's inferest in thal asscciate or joint
venture, The amendments are 1o be applied prospectively, The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments 1o HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) wes removed by the HEICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory cffective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joini ventures. However, the amendments are svailable
for adoption now.

(d) Amendments to HEAS ! and HKAS ¥ provide a new dafinition of material. The new definition
states thal information is materizl if omitling, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
sapected lo inlluence decisions that the primary wsers of general purpose financial statements
meke on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify that materialicy will
depend on the natre or magnitude of information. A misstalement of information is material if it
could reasonebly be expected (o inllvence decisions made by the primary users. The Company
expeets to adopl the amendments prospectively [rom | Jaouary 2020, The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Compeany's financial stalements.

13
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2019

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsjdjaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to varisble retumns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those rerurns through its power over the
investee (i.c., existing rights that give the Company the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee],

When the Company has, directly or indinectly, less than o majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Company considers all relevint facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a} the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contraciual arrangements; and
(¢} the Company's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale in
sccordance with HKFRS § Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Diperations are stated
af cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is 2n entity in which the Company has a long term interest of generally not less than
200 of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a posifion to exercise significanl influence,
Significant influence is the power 1o participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control aver these policies,

A joint venlure is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangament have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the coniractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

If &n investment in an associate becomes an investment in 2 jotnt weniure or vice versa, the retained
interes! iz not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be sccounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint contral over
the joint venture, the Company measures and recognises any refained investment at its fair valuc,
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joinl control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recogmised in profit or loss.

The results of an associate and joint ventures are included in profit o= loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in an associate and a joint venture are treated as
non-current assets and are stated at cost less any impairment losses. 'When an investmenl in ag
associate or a joint venture is classified es held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HEFRS
5

14
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurcment
Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

trapsaction hetween market pardicipants at the measwrement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the esset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset cr liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or lability. The principal or the most advaniageous markc! mist
be accessible by the Company. The fair velue of an asset or a liability is measured vsing the
assumptions that market parficipants would use when pricing the assel or liability, assaming thet
nearket participants act in their seonomic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into aceount a morket participant's ability to
gencrate econamic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the assel in i1s highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate jn the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and lisbilities for which fair value is measured or diselozed in the financial statements are
eategorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level inpul that
it significant to the fair value measarement os a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significent to the fair
value measurement is obeervable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and Liabilitics that are recognised in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hiermrehy by reassessing
categorization (based an the lowest level input that is significant (o the fair value measurement as a
whole) ei the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of nop-finsmcial assets

Where an indization of impainment exists, or when annual impairment testing for 2n assel is required
{other than deferred tax assets, [mancial assels), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual assel, upless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assels or groups of essets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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24  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised enly if the camrying amount of an asset exceeds its secoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cumrent market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impainment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense entegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recogmised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimaled. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
assel other than poodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates nsed
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not 1o an amount higher than the carrving amount
that would have been determined (pet of any depreciation/amortisation) hed no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of soch an impairment oss is eredited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

Related pagties
A parly is considerad to be reluted to the Company il

{a}  the porty is a person or o close member of thal person's Tamily and that persan

(i) has control of joint control aver the Company;
(i) bas significant influence over the Company; or
(iii}  is a member of the key managemenl personnel of the Company or of a parent of the
Company,
or

(k) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

{1} the entity and the Company are members of the same group;

{1z) oné enhity 15 an associale or Jool venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

{itiy  the eatity and the Company are jomt venlures of the seme (bird party;

{iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other colity is an associate of {he
third entity;

{v} the entity is & post-emplovment benefit plan for the benefit of employess of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company;

{vi)  the eafity is conmolled or jointly controlled by & person identified in (2);

{vil)  aperson identified in (a)}(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity); and

{vili) the eatity, or any member of 2 group of which it Is a par, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the Company.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {eontinnad)

Plant and equipment and depreciation

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and eny impainment losses.
When an item of plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of 2 dispasal
group classified ag held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounred for in accordance with HKFRS
5. The cost of an item of plant and equipment comprises itz purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset o its working condition and location for its intended use,

Expenditure incurred after items of plant and squipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to prodit or loss in the period in which it is incured, In
simations where the recognition eriteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection s
capitalised in the carrving amount of the nsset as a replacement. Where significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual
assels with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Diepreciation is caleulated on the straight-line basis to write off the eost of each nem of plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated vscful life. The principal anmal rates wsed for this

purpese are as follows:
Furniture and equipment 1655 1o 33%%
Motor vehicles 20% to 334%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipiment have different useful lives, the cost of that jlem is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and eacl part is deprecinted separately. Residual
values, wseful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if approgpriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An ilem of plant and equipment and any significant pant initially recognised is derecognised wpon
disposal or when ne future cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
an disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asse! is derecognised iz the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the earrying amoont of the relevant assel.

ses (applic 1 Jam 201
The Company assesses at contract inception whether 0 contract is, of contains, o lease. A contract is,
of contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 2n identified asset for a
period of ime in exchange for consideration.

Company af g fessee

The Company applies 2 single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
terrn leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right 1o use the underlying assets,

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assats are recognised af the commencemesnt date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset iz available for vse). Right-of-use assets are measured at eost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impainment losses, and adjusted for any remessurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lense incentives received.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable from | January 2019} (continged)

(b} Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the preseat value of
lease payments to be mode over the lease term. The lease payments include fived payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less ony lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and emounts expected to be peid under residual value
guarzntess. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase oplion rezsonably
cerfain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the leasc term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable Jease
payments thet do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition thet triggers the paymen! occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date becanse the intersst rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is 2 modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (2.g., a change to futore lese payments Tesulling from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the under] ving asset,

EASES icable bef anuary 2
Leases where substentially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operaling leases.  Where the Company is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investigents and other financial assets

fnifial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at zmortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss,

The classification of financial assces at initial recognition depends on the financial asset®s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for menaging them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contein @ significant financing compenent or for which the Company
has applied the praclical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Company initizlly measures & financial assct at its fair value, plus in the cese of a financial asset
not gt fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs, Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are
measured gt the transaction price delermined under IIKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies sel out
for “Revenue recognition™ below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and messured ot amortised cost or [air value through
other comprehensive income, it neads to give rise to cash fows that are solely payments of principal
and interest ("SETT") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial asscts with cash {ows that are
not SPPT are classified and measured ot fair value trough profit or loss, irespective of the business
model.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investinents an 3 ancial assets {(contigued)

The Company's business madel for managing financial assets refers to how it menages s financizl
gssets in order to generale cash flows. The business model determines whether cash Bows will rezult
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured of amortised cost are held within a business model with the abjective to hold financial
assely in order o collect contractual cash flows, while financial sssets classified and measured at fair
valoe through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective of
bath holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financiel assets which are nol held within
the aforementioned business models are elassified and measured al fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of Fnancial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
esiablished by regulation or convention in the marketplsce.

Subseguent measurement
The subsequent measuremyent of financial assets depends on their elassification as foliows:

Financial assets at amortised eost {deln insiremenis)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired,

Financial aysets af foir valwe through other comprehensive income (debt instrumens)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recogniged in the statermsnt of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financiel assets measured at amortised cost. The
remiaining fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair vaiue change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement
of profit or loss.

Financial asvets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income fequity irvestments)
Upan initial recognition, the Company can elect 1o classify irevocably its equity investments as
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instriments: Presentation and are not held for trading,
The classification is determined on an instrament-by-instrument basis.

Gaing and losses on these financial assels are never recycled 1o the statement of profit or loss,
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
hag been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Company end the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Company
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated al fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairzen! assessment,
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

lnvestnents and other Guancial assets (continved)

Fimancial asvets @t fair value through profit ov loss

Financial assels al fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of finaneial position at
fair valuc with nct changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instrumenis and equity invesiments which the Company had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fhir value profit or lose are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, wilh a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic charecteristics and
risks are not closely related to the host a sepamle instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of 2 denvative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recopnised in the stmtement of profit or loss. Reessessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of 2 financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss categery.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asser host together with the embedded derivative is required 1o be classified
in its entirety as 2 financial asset at fair value theough profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assefs
The Company recognises an allowance for Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments

not held at fair value through profit or loss, ECLs are based on the differcnoe between the coniractual
cash {lows due in aceordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects lo
receive, discounted al an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms,

Caneral approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credil exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credil risk since inital recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (2 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which (here has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for eredit losses expected over the remaining lite of the exposure, imespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting dete, the Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument kos
increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Company
compares the risk of & defaull cccurring on the financial mstnument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default ocourring on the financial instrument as at the dete of initisl recogmition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Simplified approach

For account receivables and contract assets that do not conlzin & sipnificant financing component or
when the Company applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the cffect of a sipnificant financing
component, the Company applies the simplified approach in caleulating ECLs, Under the simplified
approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises & loss allowanes
based on lifetime ECLs al each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix thet
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-locking factors specific 1o the
debtors and the economic environment,

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significan! fnmucing component and leass
receivables, the Company chooses as its accounting policy te adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Derecognition of financial sssets
A finaneial asset {or, where applicable, s part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial position)
when:
= therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
# (he Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel or has assumed an
obligation o pay the received cach flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
"puss-through” arangement; and either (a) the Company has mansferred substantisily ali the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asser,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows frem an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the assel. When it has neither transferred por retained substantialiv eil the rigks aod
rewards of the asset nor transferred contro] of the asset, the Company continuss o recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing invelvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises en associated linbility. The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights aird oblipations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvemeant that lakes the form of & guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum emouni of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.

inaneial liabilities i

Financial fabilities including accrued liabilicies and amounts due to group companies, which ure
classified os loans end borrowings, ave inidaily stated at fair value plus directly atributable
transaction costs and are subsequently messored sl amortised cosl, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immalerial, in which case they are stated at eost.

Geins and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the lisbilities are derecognised as well a5
through the amortisation process.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continwed)

Derecognition of financizl lishilities

A finzncial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,
or expires. When an existing finencial lisbility iz replaced by ancther from the same leader on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecogmition of the original liability aod the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference betweea the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loas.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
linancial position if there is a currently enforcenble legal right 1o offset the recognised ameunts and
there is an intention to seifle on a nel basis, or o realise the assets and settle the linhilities
simultaneously,

Client bank balances

The Company maintaing trust and segrepated accaunts with authorised financizl institutions o hold
clienls’ deposits arising from normal business transactions. The Company has classified the elients’
monies as client rust bazk balances under current assets in the statement of financial position as the
Company is allowed to retain some or all of the interest income on the clients' reonies and recognised
corresponding accounts payable to the respective customers in current lizbilities on grounds that it is
ligble for any loss or misappropristion of clients’ monies, The Company is not ellowed 1o nse the
clients' monies to settfe its own obligation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Far the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cesh on hand and
demand deposgite, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have 1 shest maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form en integral pert of the Company's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents eomprise cash on
hand and at banks, incivding term deposits, which are ool restricted as to use.

Income 1ax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tex, Income tax relating to ilems recognised outside profit

or loss is recognized oufside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and lisbilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on lax rates (and tax Jaws) that have been enacted or subslantvely
enacted by the end of the reporting pericd, taking into consideration interpretation and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Company operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liahility method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

rEporiing purposes.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inzome tax (continued)

Defecred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an esset or
liability in & ransaction that is not 2 business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affeers neither the ascounting profit nor texable profit or loss; and

s in respeet of texable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jolnt ventures, when the Uiming of the reverse! of the temporary differenees can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeabls
[uture,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary dilferepces, and the carrylorwerd of

urused tax credits and any unused tex losses, Deferred 1ax assels are recognised (o the extent that it

is probable thal taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,

the carrviorward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

= whes the deferred tax assel relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction (ke is nol & business combination and, al the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable proft or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associales and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recopnised fo the cxtent that it Is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tex assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced (o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient laxable profit will be available (o
allew all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilissd. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are reeognised to the extent that it has beconse
probable that sufficient taxable profic will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferrad tax asset to
be recovered,

Deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the Lability is setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacled or
substantively enacied by the end of the reporling pesiod.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
currenl tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxeble entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Reverue from eomracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when central of goods or services is rransferved
te the eustomers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects (o be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue are recognised on the following bases:
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (continued)

Revenue recogmition

(EY] investment advisory fees, when the respective fees are carned, Additional performance fiees
arising upon the achievement of specified performance targets, are recognised at the year end
of the respeetive funds when such fees are confirmed as enntled and receivable;

(b) commission on redemption of investment funds, as revenue on the transaction dates when the
relevant contract notes are executed;

{c} interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated fiture cash receipt through the cxpected life of the financial
instrurncnt to the net carrying amount of the financizl asset; and

id) dividend income, when the shareholders' right 1o receive payment has been established,

Share-based payment transactions

The Manulife Financial Corporation, the Company’s ultimate holding company, operates share option
schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the suecess of the Manulife Financial Corporation groups cperations. Employees (including
directors) of the Company receive remunerstion in the form of share-based payment, whereby
emplovees render services as consideration for equity instruments ("equity-seitled transactions™),

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants afier 7 November 2002 is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using
tie Black-Scholes option pricing model, further details of which are given in note 22 to the Gnancial
statements, The cast of equity-sellled transections is recognised in employee benefit expense, together
with 2 corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled.

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of sach reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will altimately vest. The charpe or credit to
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that perod.

Service and non-market performanee eonditions are pot taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instrumenls that will ultimately west. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considersd to be non-vesting
conditions. Mon-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead o an
immediate cxpensing of an award unless there are also servies andfor performance conditions,

For awards that do not ullimately vest becauge non-market performance andior serviee conditions
kave not been met, 0o exXpense is recognised.  Where awards elude a merket or non-vesting

condition, the transactions are treeted as vesting irrespactive of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisficd.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions {continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled awerd are modified, as a minimum an expense s recogmised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met, In addilion, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the dafe of medificetion.

Where an couity-szettled award is camcelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any cxpense not yet recognised for the awerd i recognised immediately. This includes any
award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Company or the employes are not
rmet,

However, if 2 new award is substituted for the caneelled award, and designated 25 o replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards sve treated as if they were &
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The cost of cash-zettled transactions is measured initially al fair value, laking into account the terms
and conditions wpon which the instnunents were granted. The fair value i expensed over the period
unfil vesting with recognition of a comesponding liability. The liability is measured at the end of sach
report period up to and including the sestlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in profil
or lozs.

The Company has adopted the transitions] provisions of HEFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards
and has applied HEKFRS 2 anl].l' to equity-settled awerds granted afier ¥ November 2002 that had oot
vested by | Jaonuary 2005 and to thoge pranted on or after 1 January 2005,

Other employee benefits
Pt leave carried forward

The Company provides paid annoel leave (o ils employees under their employment contracts on a
celendar year basis. Under certain cireumstances, such leave which remains unlaken as at the end of
the reporting period iz permitted to be carried forward for one year and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accruel is mede at the end of the reporting period for the
expected fizture cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward,

Pension schemes

The Company operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retivement benefits scheme
{the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatery Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligiole to panticipate in the Scheme, Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
emplayees' basic salasies and are eharged to profit or loss es they become payable in accordance with
the mles of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund, The Company's emplover contributions vest fully
with the emplovess when contributed into the MPF Schome, except for the Company's emplover
voluntary contributions, which are refunded te the Company when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fislly, in accordence with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

24  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Dividend
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the sharcholders in general
meeting,

Interim dividends are simulianeously proposed and declared, because the Company's memorandum
gnd articles of association grant the directors the avthority to declere inferim dividends,
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a lability when they are proposed
end declared by the directors,

FCoreign currencies
These fnancizl statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
CUFTENCY.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using \be fimctional currency mates prevailing et
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting pesiod,
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised m profit or loss.

Non-monetary items thal are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the cxchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising in translation of a non-moneiary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the ilem,

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTRMATES

The preparation of the Compeny's financial statements requires manzgement to make adjustments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported mmount of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying discloswes, and the disclosure of continpent liabikities.
Unceriainty aboul these assumption and estimates could result in ouscomes that could require material
adjusiment o the cammying amounts of the assets and Babilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of appiying the Company's accounting policies, management hes made the following
Judgements, apar? from those involving estimations, which have the most signaficant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statcments:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company concluded that revenue for investment advisory servives is lo be recognised over time
becauss the customer simultanesusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

Exlimali tai
The key assumptlions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end

of the reporling period, thet have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying
aimounis of assets and Hakilities within the next financial year, are described below,
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3] December 2019

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Tmpairment of non-financial assets fother than goodwil])

The Company 2ssesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
the end of esch reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the camrying
value of an asset or & cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on availabic data from binding sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, managemen| must estimate the expectad future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order 1o caleulaze the
present value of those cash flows.

Dgferred tex assels

Deferved tax assets are recopnised for all unused tax Josses to the extent that it iz probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgcment
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax avsels that can be recognised, based upen the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with fulure tax planning strategies.

Assessment of invesimend finds as sorvctured enrfites
The Company has assessed whether the funds, for which the Compeany provides assel management
services, are structured entities.

The Company considered the voting rights and other similar rights afforded to other parties in these
[unds (investors, independent board of directors, or tustees), including the rights to remove the
Company as fund manager, liquidate the fands, or redeem holdings in the funds (if soch rights are
equivalent o liguidating the funds) and hss concluded as to whether thesc rights are the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the funds. The Company has judged thet managed funds are
structured enlities unless substantive removal or liquidation rights (incinding redemption rights akin
to liquidation) exist.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

4. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the interest income from authorised institulicns and investrment advisory fees, An

analysis of revenue, other income 2nd gains is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Interest income from authonsed institutions
Investment advisory fees
Less: Investment fee expensss and rebates

Other income
Dividend income from a joint venlure
Expense recharge to intecreompany
(iain an finaneial investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Foreign exchange loss, oet

5. (LOS5) / PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Company's operating expense include:

Employee henefils expenses
Wages and salarjes
Pension scheme contribulions
Share-based payments

Service fees (Mote 23)

Rental and occupaney expenses (MNote 23)

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assers (MNote 20)

Auditors’ remuneration
Interest on lease Liabilities (Note 20)

201¢ 2018
HES HEKS
1,671,435 700,112
1,074,938,070 1,100,236,836
(429,851,230} (423 884.887)
646,758,275 677,052,061
6,556,709 37,062,884
58,752,006 58,800,655
7,533,150 1,878,259
{1,283,050) (722.813)
71,558,815 57,019,585
718,317,090 774,071,646
2019 2018
HKS HK$
506,772,156 484,181,061
19,185,123 17,774,155
25,221,315 16,389,638
79,009,059 74,549.210
39,266,719 36,862,079
12,640,497 .
1,038,253 1,417,659
1,009,141 .

The presentation of employes benefits expenses and service fees wers reclassified for befler
preseniing the essence of the arrangements and conformed to the currsnt year's presentation,
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1] December 2019

b DIRECTORS' REMUMERATION

Directors” remuneration disclosed pursuant to sectiom 383(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulations, is as follows:

2019 2018
HKS HK$
F
oS 225811 68,034
Other emoluments
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 18168673 19,970,012
18,394,784 20,038,046

The presentation of direclors” remuneration was reclassified for better presenting the essence of the
arrangemenis and conformed o the cument year's presentation.
7. INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Keng profits tax has been mude es the Company did pot generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the vear (2018: Nil),

A reconcilistion of the tax charge/crodit applicable to loss before tax using the statutory rate 1o the tax
expense af the effective tax rale, is as follows:

2014 2018

HE% Y HE: L
(Loss) / Profit before tax (37,700,588) . 67.584,010_
Tax at the statutory tax rete of 16.5% (9,520,597) 16.5 11,151,342 16.5
Income not subject to tax (1,357,618) 24 (6,230,894 {9.2)
Expenses not deductible for tex 4,393,338 [7.63 2,761,311 4.1
Tax losses not recognised 6,484,877 (1L2) - -
Uilisarion of 1ax [osses previowsly not

recognised - - (71.681,779) {11.4)

Tax charpe st effective rate . - - .
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2019

8. PLANT AND EQUIFPMENT

Frmiture and Motor
equipirent vehicles Total
HES% HES HES
At 1 Janmary and 31 December 2019:
Cost 7,720,276 951,626 671,902
Avcumulated depreciation (7.720,276) (951,626} (8,671,902)
Met carrying amount - - -
Fumniture and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HES HK% HES
At 1 January and 31 December 2015:
Cost 7,720,276 851,626 E671,502
Accumulated depreciation (7.720,276) (951.626) (8.671,902)

Net carrying arnennt

8. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
HKS HKS
School debentures, at fair valoe 825,000 B235,000
Club debentires, at fair value 560,000 560,000
Muual funds, at fair value $4.484.947 70,648,276
£5.360,047 72.033.276

1. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
2019 2018
HES HES
Unlisted shares, at cost 316,569,560 250,032,569

The amount dee from subsidiaries included in the Company's current assets of HK52,835,873 (2018:
HE5485,536) is unsecured, interest-free, and is repayable on demand.
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10 INVESTMENT 1N SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiary are as follows:

Percentage
of ordinary
Mominal value  shares directly
Place of of issued held by Principal
Mame incorporation share capital  the Compeny activities
Manulile
Investrpent : i
Engages in raising
Ma_rrngan:;nt and management of
{'I:m?mn} O ] SECUriLies mvestient
Limited (formerdly Taiwan  NTD331,500,000 100 A Rt
known as Manulife o
discretionary
*’*“‘."‘ Managemeal investment services
{Taiwaz) Co.,
Limited)
E:::‘]’f:”‘ Chi US$7,374,989 100 mi:ﬁgﬂmg
i ina 374, i
(Shanghai) Limited investment services
Company
Manulife
Investment Engages in provision
Management Hong Kong HKS100,000 100  of nominee account
(HE Mominees SErvices
Limited

The net loss for the vear of Manulife Investment Management {Taiwan) Co., Limited attributable to
the Company which was pol dealt with in the financial statements of Manulife Imeestment
Management (Taiwan} Co.. Limited amounted to HES6,779,431 (2018: net gain of HKS632,102).
The net accumulated past-aequisition loss as at the end of the reporting period of the subsidiary
attributable to the Compary amounted to HES108,875.255 (2018: HK3102,095,824) and oo dividend
or impairment loss were deall with in the financial statements of the Company.

The net less for the yesr of attnbutable to the Company which wag not deall with in the financial
siatements of the Mapulife Iovestment {Shanghai) Limited Company amounted to HES11,822 850
{2018; HK$3,025,0983), The net sceumulated post-acquisition loss as at the end of the reporting
pericd of the subsidiary altributable o the Company amounted to HES23084.888% (2018:
HEKE12,161,998) and no dividend or impairment loss were deailt with in the financial stalements of the
Company.

The net profil for Mamalife Investment Management (HED) Nominees Limited was nil for the vear,
Mo dividend or impairment loss were dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

11.  INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

2019 2018
HES HKS
Unlisted investments, at cost 1,123,135,816 1,123.135,816
) Percentage of
Name i Placeof Ownership Voting  Profit  Principal
: held registration interest  power sharing ativily
Manulife TEDA Registered
Fund Management capital of China 49 a9 49 Ritad
Co., Ltd. RMB!1 each TN

The ahovi invesiment in joint venture is directly held by the Company.

Manulife TEDA Fund Management Company Limited, which is considered a material joint venture
of the Company, is accounted for using the cost method under exemption from HEAS 28,
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MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

11.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (centinued)

The following table illusirates the summarised financial imformation of Manulife TEDA Fund
Management Company Limited adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to

the casrying amount in the financial stalements:

09 2018
HKS HES
Cash and cash cquivalents 685,938,863 654,346,531
Other current assets 240,361,938 241,689,146
Current asscts 026,300,821 BO6,035,677
Mon-current sesels 12,168,080 7,603,015
Financial lishilities, excluding trade and other payables 5
Other current lisbilitics 102,027,793 F5,844,603
Current liabilities 102,027,793 75,844,603
Mon-current financial Habilities, excluding trade and other )
payables and provisions B
Mon - corrent liabilities - -
2019 2018
HES HES
Met Assets Hib441,109 B27,794,089
Met Assets, excluding goodwill 536,441,108 527,794,089
Reconciliation to the Company’ interest in (e joint venture
Proportion of the Company's ownership 40%; 49%;
Company's shere of net azscets of the joint venture 409,856,143 405,6]9 104
Add: post acquisition profit 713,279,673 717,516,712

Carrying amotnt of the investment

1,123,135,816

_1,123,135816

Revenue 272,762,184 302,069,313
Interest income 23,331,121 34,066,153
Depreciation and amortisation 11,735,404 7,826,581
Tax (13,551 456} (19.220,978)
Profit amdd total comprehensive income for the year 33,904,356 39,500,619
Other comprehensive incame 2,841,110 {509,832)
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MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 20019

12. DEFERRED TAX

The Company has tax losses arising ic Hong Kong of HEK$480,246,701 (2018: HK.3415890,505) that
are available indefinilely for offsetting against fuure taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferrad lax assets have not been recogrised in respect of these losses as the Company has
been in a tax loss position for some lime and # is not considered probable that taxable profiss will be
availeble against which the tax losses can be utifised.

13.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

209 2018

HEK3 HES

Investment advisory fee receivables (Note (a) 57,048,204 44 388,082
Amounts receivable from dealing in securities (Note (b))

- (Cash clients 1,650,000 -

- Fund houses 920,036 -

Other fees receivable (Mots (a)) 5,003,148 4,001,561

£5,561 388 48 479 644

(&} The account receivable represents investment advisory fees receivable from the funds managed by
the Company, which are usually setlled within 3 months. There is no significant concentriation of
credit fisk. The carrying amounts of the accounls receivable approximate their fair value.

(b) The account receivable from cash elients and fund houscs arises from the ordinary course of
business of dealing in securities. The amounts ere not considered impaired at the end of the

reporting period.

Thers is oo loss allowznee for impairment of accounts receivable recognised during the year (2015:
Mil).

Tmipairment under AKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December 2018

An impairment analvsis is performed at cach reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses.

Set out below is the mformarion about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade receivables
using a provision matrix:

As at December 31 2019
Current 1to3 months  Over 3 months Total
Expected credit Joss rate 0% 0% 0% 09
(Gross carrying ameunt
(HKS) 61,176,492 3,988,936 385,960 65,561,388
Expected credit losses (HKS) - 2 - -
34
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MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

14.

13.

L6,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2019 018

HES HES

Deposits a74,727 377016
Prepayments and other receivables 4,876,707 1.600677
5,451,434 4,177,693

None of the above assels are either past due or impaired. The financial asscts included in the above
balances relate to reccivables [or which there was no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
af thess financial asscts approcimale their fair values.

BALAMNCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

2019 2018
HKS HES
Ammounts due from
- an inmmediate holding company - 4,173,603
- 3 subsidiary 2,835,873 485,536
- fullow subsidiaries 63068805 93,654 899
- a joint venture 6,798,953 -
72,203 711 98,324,038
Amounts due to
- intermediate holding companies 279731986 53,908,960
- an immediate holding company 932,530 -
- 2 subsidiary 10000 -
- [lellow subsidiaries 32,588,988 42 904,755
- ajoint veniure - 150,709
1,505,504 06,964,424

The balances with related parties ane unsecured, interest-free and repayeble on demond. The carrying
amounts of these balances approximate their fair values,

CLIENT BANK BALANCES
The Company maintained clients' monies of HK$20,168,157 (2018: nil) in segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions through an affiliated neminee company in accordapee with the

provisions of Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules. Client monies were not
included in the cash and cash equivalents of the Campany.
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31 Drecember 2019

17.

19.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

2019 2018
HES HEKS
219,027 369 239,193,310

Cash at bank beneficially owned by the Company eams intercst at floating rales based on daily bank
deposits rates. The hank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default,

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Amonnts payable 1o clicnts
Amounts payable to fund houses

2019 2018
HKS HKS
L7132 -
10,065,897 -
23779, 194 -

Accounts payable to clients and fund houses represents amounts payable arising in the normal course

of dealing in securities.

ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Payables
Other accruals

2019 2018

HK3 HES
781,364 933,235
228,650,520 189,921,085
219,472,084 190,854,340

Payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of three months and other accroale are
normal by settled within I year. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values,

1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

20. LEASES
{a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Company®s right-of-use assets and the movements during the year are a3

follows:
Properties
leased for own
e
HES
Agat 1| January 2019 -
Additions 37,921,489
Depreciation charge (Note 5) : (12,640,497)
As at 31 December 2019 25,280,992

(b)  Leese liabilities

The carrving amounts of the Compeny’s lease labilities and the movements during the year are as

follows:

2019
HE%
Carrving emount a4 | Januery 2019 -
New leases 37,921,489
Accretion of interes! recognised during the year (Note 5) 1,009,141
Payments (13,244,160}
Carmving amounl 21 3] December 2019 25686470

Analysed into:
Current porlion 12636114

Nen-current portion 13050356

(<) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:

2019
HES

Interest on lease liabilitics (Nobe 5) I 08K, 141

Drepreciation charge of right-of-use assets (Note 5) 12 640,497

13,649,638
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WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

21.  SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018
HEE HES
[ssued and fully paid:
1318498343 (2018: 1,245,261,343 of HKS]1 each)
ardinary shares 1,371,944 543 1,298,707 343
301,000,000 (2015: 301,000,000 of HKS] each)
preferred shares 300.000,000 301,000,000
1,672,944,843 1,359, 707,843

A sumimary of movements in the Company's ordinary share capital iz as follows:

Share capital

and uther

Number of Share statutory

shares in issue Capitsl reserve

Ordinary shares HES HES%

ALl January 2018 1,229,543 543 1,282,000,043 1,282,990,043

Share issued (note (7)) 15,717,800 15,717,800 15,717 800
At 3] December 2018 and 1

January 2019 1,245,261 343 [L.298, 707,543 1,298,707 543

Share issued (note (b)) 731,237,000 73,237,000 73,257,000

At 21 December 2019 1,318,495 343 1,371,944, 843 1,371,944 843

Motes: ;

{a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 23 February 2017, 15,717,800 ordinary shares were
issued to the existing sharcholder of the Company on 27 March 2018, which resulted in incresse
in share capital of HK$15,717,800. The purpose of the issve was fo fund capital to z subsidiary.

(¥} Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 7 March 2019, 46,800,000 ordinary shares were
issued to the existing shareholder of the Company on 29 April 2019, which resulied in increase in
share capital of HKS46,800,000. The purpose of the issue was to fund ongoing working capital
of the Company.

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 7 March 2019, 15,660,000 and 10,777,000 ordinary
shares were issued lo the existing shareholder of the Company on 26 Augnst 2019 and 22
Movember 2019, which resulted in increase in share capital of HKS15660.000 and
HK$10,777,000 respectively. The purpose of the issues were lo find capital injection fo =
subsidiary.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KENOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

22, EXECUTIVE STOCK OPTION PLAN, RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT PLAN AND
PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT PLAN OF ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Under the Executive Stock Option Plan ("ESOP") of the ultimate holding company, stock options are
periodically granted to the employees (including directors) of the Company for their service granted
to the Company. Options provide the holder with the right to purchase common shares at an exercise
price equal to the closing market price of the ultimate holding company's common shares on the
Exchange on the business day immediately preceding the date the options were granted. The options
vest aver a period of pot exceeding four years and expire not more than 10 years from the grant date.
A total of 73.6 million common shares have been reserved for jssue under the ESOP for the
Company's employces.

In addition to ESOP, the ultimate holding company of the Company also granted restricted share units
("RSU"} and performance share waits ("PSU") 1o the employee (including directors) of the Company
for their service rendered to the Company. RSUs and PSUs entitle a participant to receive a payment
equal to the market value of the same number of common shares of the Company's ultimate holding
company at the time the BSUs and PSUs vest and are puid oot within three years from issuanes,
Participants’ aceounls are credited with dividends declarcd on common shares. Mo common shares of
the Company's ultimate holding company will be issued in connection with RSUs and PSUs.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:

2019 2018
Weighted Weighted
average AVCTagE
eXCreise price Mumber of  exercise price Number of
CAD aptions can options
At 1 Jamaary 20.29 254,629 19225 249423
Granted during the year 2260 44,830 2473 19,037
Exercised during the vear 17.57 (52,497} - -
Cancelled’expired during the year 19.48 _ {26,613} 3771 (13,841)
At 31 December 20.12 220,349 15.65 254,629
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MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KEONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

22,

EXECUTIVE STOCK OPTION PLAN, RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT PLAN AND
PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT PLAN OF ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY {continued}

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2019
Exercise Period Exercise Prices* Number of options
CAD
May 3, 2020 1o May 3, 2031 22.60 44,830
February 27, 2019 w Pebruary 27, 2030 24.73 19.037
February 28, 2018 to February 28, 2029 24.61 17,690
Febroary 23, 2017 to Febroary 23, 2026 17.59 50,720
Febroary 24, 2016 to February 24, 2025 22.02 30,594
February 25, 2015 to February 25, 2024 21.20 13,726
February 19, 2014 to February 19, 2023 15.52 13,926
February 21, 2013 to February 21, 2002 12.64 20,119
February 22, 2012 to February 22, 2021 18.91 3437
February 23, 2011 to February 23, 2020 1948 5,968
220349
2018

Exercise Period Exercise Prices® Number of

oplons

CAD

February 27, 2019 to February 27, 2030 24,73 19,037

Fehruary 28, 2018 1o February 28, 2029 24.61 17,650

February 23, 2017 to February 23, 2026 17.5% 50,720

February 24, 2016 1o February 24, 2025 2202 30,896

February 25, 2015 to February 25, 2024 21.20 13,726

February 19, 2014 to February 19, 2023 15.52 18,568

February 21, 2013 to February 21, 2022 12.64 26,825

February 22, 2012 to February 22, 2021 1891 13,247

February 23, 2011 to February 23, 2020 19.48 25,920
February 15, 2010 to February 15, 2019 15.67 37,491

254,629

*  The exercise price of the share oplions is subjeet to adjustrment in case of rights o boarus issues,
or other similer changes in the share capital of the ultimate holding company.

The Company recognised a share option expense of HK$642,637 (2018 HEK$%$224,083) during the
year ended 31 December 2019,

The fair value of the RSUs and PSUs granted during the year was HKS3 640,052 (2018:
HES$994,007) in respect of which the Companv recognissd RSUs and PSUs expenses of
HE$24,578,678 (2018: HK$16,164.654) during the vear ended 31 December 2019,

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the RSUs and PSUs lisbilities amounted to
HEE22,517,660 (2018: HKS8.809,539).
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{#) The Company hed the follewing material transactions with refated parties during the year

2019 2018
HES HKS
Notes
Investment advisory fees received from (i)
- the immediate holding company 16,558,128 57,614,330
- a subsidiary 13,380,897 14,579,359
- feltow subsidinries 450 806,417 5EE.486,379
Investment foe expenses paid to (i}
- an intermediate holding company 39,536,584 15,293,822
- a subsidiary 6,896 585 6,348 464
- @ joiat venture 482,547 986,359
- fellow subsidiaries 232,798,009 256,202,574
Service fees charped 1o {ifi)
- #n intermediate holding company 44,084,157 38319836
- the immediate holding company 58,705 485 58,782,003
- fellow subsidiaries 25,581,346 28,033,391
Service fees paid to fellow subsidiaries {iv) 79,009,059 74,549,210
Rental and cceupancy expenses paid to (v)
a fellow subsidiary 24,189,058 36,627,167
Infurmation system charges paid to {iv)
- ultimate holding company 2371211 2,638,241
- an intermediate holding company 13,399,917 3,468,543
- fellow subsidiaries - 5.227,190

Motes:

{i) The investment advisory fee income is based on terms as agreed with the immediate
holding company, subsidiary, and fellow subsidiaries,

(it} The investment fee expenses include sub-investment manager fees, trailer foes and agency
fees. The sub-investment manager fees are based on terms as agreed with the subsidiary,
fellow subsidiaries, joint venture and intermediale holding company. Trailer fees and
agency fees represent services provided by a fellow subsidiary w the Company and are
based on acival costs incurmed by the fellow subsidiary.

(iit)  The serviee fees represent services provided by the Company to an intermediate holding
company, immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries. The servics fees are based
on actual costs incmred.

fivi  The service fees and information system charges paid to fellow subsidiaries, an
intermediate holding company and ultimate holding company are hased on actual costs
inearred.

i) Rental and occupancy expenses represeni services provided by 4 fellow subsidiary fo the
Company. The charges are based on actual costs incurred by the fellow subsidiary,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

23. RELATED PARTY TEANSACTIONS {continued)
(b} Outstanding balances with related parties

The balanees with related parties as at 3] December 2019 are unsecured, interest-free, and are
repayeble on demend. These carrying amounts approximate their fir vales.

(e) Compensation of key menagement personnel of the Company:

2019 2018
HES HKS
Short term emploves benefits 18,394,784 20038046

18,304,784 20,038,046

Further detailz of directors’ remuncration are included in note & to the financial statements.

24, OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company leases its office {including manegement fee and service fee) under operating lease
arrangements. Lease for the property is negotiated for a 3-year term,

Ar 31 December 2018, the Company had total future mininum lease payments ender non-cancellable
operating lewses falling due as follaws,

2018
HEKS
Within one vear 18,533,713

In the second to fifth yeors, inclusive 74,134,860

9LG6RSTS
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3] December 2019

25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The camying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as ar the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
2019
Financial assets at
Financial assets at  fair value through
Fipancial assels amortised cost profit or loss Tolal
HES000 HES00 HEE000
Financial investments at far valus
through profit or loss - 85,870 85870
Accounts receivable 65,561 - 65,561
Financial assets included in
prepavmments deposits and other
receivables 2,257 - 2257
Due from related parties 72,204 - T2 204
Client bank balances 20,169 - 20,169
Cosh and cash equivalents 219,028 - 219028
379218 85,870 465,085
Financial
; et e liabilities at
E 1 liahil amartised
cost
HESOOD
Accoumts payable 22770
Accroed liabilities 228472
Due to related parties 61,596
31847
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

25, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGOURY {contimued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continoed)

20018
Financial
Financial assels  assels at fair
Financial aseets at amortised value Total
cost through
profit or loss

HES'000 HERDO6 — HESO0
Financial imvestments ot fair value

through profit or loss - 72,033 72,033
Accounts reccivable 48,480 - 48 480
Financial assets included in

prepayvments deposits and other

receivables 2369 - 2,269
Due from related perties 95,325 - 98,325
Cash and cash equivalents 2249193 - 229,153

378,267 T2,033 450,300

Finamcial

Financial lizbiliti liabilitics at
amortised cost

HES'N00

Acerued liabilities 190,454

Due to related parties

96,965

287,819
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONMG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

26. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair valves of the Company's fnancial instruments, other than those with
carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
2019 2018 20019 2018
HES000 HE 5000 HESW00 HES000
Financia! assets
Finaneizl investments at fair
value through profit or less X
Mutual funds 54,4385 0,648 £4.485 70,548
School debentures 825 Bi5 825 825
Club debenbures 560 560 560 560
B5,ET0 72,033 85,870 72,033

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, account receivables, financial sssets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other peyables and
aceruals, amounts due fromfto affiliates approximate to their carrying amounts largely due 1o the short
term maturities of thess instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are inchoded at the smount al whick the
instrument could be exchanged in a curent transection between willing partics, other than in & forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were usad to astimate the fair values:

The fair values of mutual fund and club debentures are based on quoted market prices. The school
debentures are carried al amortized cost less mpainment losses as there is no active market. The
school debentores pre intercst=frec and repayable on demand, At the end of the year, management has
conducted an impairment assessment of the school debenfures. As there is no history of defaull in

peyment from the counterparty, and the counterparty has a healthy {inancial pesition, management
concluded thar the carrving value approximates its fair value.
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MANULFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HOMNG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Deeember 2019

26.

FAIR ¥ALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurcment hicrarchy of the Compeny's financial
matrumenis:

Asgers measured of foir value:

Asat 3] December 2019
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservahle

markeis inputs inpruts
(Level 1D (Lewvel 2} (Level 3) Total
HES000 HES'00 HECS 000 HECS0
Financial assets at frir value

through profit or loss:
Mutual funds B4, 485 - - #4485
School debentures - - RIS g25
Club debenteres 360 - = 260
B5.045 - B25 35,870

As et 31 December 2018
Fair value measurement using
Queted prices Signifeant Significant

in active ohsorvable  unobservable

markets inputs inpuls
(Leval 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Tokal
HEED00 HES 000 HES 000 HES000

Finaneial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

Mutual funds T, 648 - - 70648
Club debentures - - 825 825
Spi - - S60
71,208 - 825 72,033

The Company did not have any financial habilities measured at fair vaiue as at 31 December 2019,

During the year, there was no transfier of fair value measurements berwees Level [ and Level 2 and
o transfiers into or out of Level 3 (201 8: Nil).
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED {(FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 December 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's principal financial instrumenls comprise cash and short term deposils, available-for-
sale investments and amounts due from immediste bolding company. The main purposes of these
financial instroments are to raise finance for the Company’s operations and o eam interest income.
The Company bas other financial assets such as accounts receivables which arise directly from its
operabions.

The Company hed not cotered into any derivative transactions during the year. 1t is, and has been,
throughout the year under review, the Company's pelicy that no rading in Anancizl instruments shall
be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit Ask and liquidity fisk. The
board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks {where applicable) and they are
summarised below,

Credir vk

The Company rades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subjeat to eredit ver fication procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis and the Company's exposure o bad
debls is considered not significant.

The eredit risk of the Company's other linancial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents,
arises from default of the counterparty {which refers to licensed banks in case of bank deposits), with
a maximum exposurs equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Company considers that
the banks with which it has placed its deposits are generally recopnised es highly ereditworthy and
that the risk of dafault by these banks is considered remote and minimal. There are no significam
concentrations of credit risk for the Company.

Liguidiry risk

The Company had a solid financial position and maintaing a stremg and steady cash inflow from its
operating activites. As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the Company amounted
to HK$219 million (2018: HES229 million). The carrent ratio of the Company was 1.17 (2018: 1.33).

Since lhe Company has abundant cash and cash equivalents to meet its liabilities, the Company has
nol entered inte any bank overdrafts, bank loans, convertible bonds and other interest-bearing loans
during the year.

The foliowing table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's finaneial liabilities based an
eontreciual undiscounted cash fows as the impact of discounting is insignificant. The maturity
grouping is based en the remaining period from the end of the reporting peried to the contractual
maturity date. When a eounterparty hes a choice of when the amount is paid, the liabifity 15 allocated
lo the carliest period in which the Company can be required 1o pay,
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2015

27,

FIKANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)
Ligueidity risk feontinued)

The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities #s at the end of the reporting period, based
on the contractuzal undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2me
Less than 1ta 5 Over
On demand 1 year years 5 vears Tatal
HES'000 HESO00 HES000 HESO0D0 HKS000

Accounts payable 22,779 - - - 32779
Accrued ligbilities - 203377 26,095 - 2129472
Due o related parties 61,596 - . - 61,506
Tatzl linhilities 84,375 203377 26,095 = 313847
218
Leas than 1o § Chver

On demand 1 year yvears 3 ycars Total

HKS000  HKS000 U0 HRS000  HKS'000

Acerued liabilities - 168406 22,448 - 190,854

Due to related parlies 96,905 - - - 06,965

Total liabilities 6,905 168406 22448 - 287819
Foreign currency risk

The Company holds assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than its functional currency,
Hong Kong Dollar ("HED"), and is therefore exposed to curreney risk with respect to thess
currencies. Given the United States Dollar ("USD") is o linked currency with the Hong Kong dollar,
the Management considers that the company is not exposed to material currency risk arising from the
Unpited States Doller ("USD®) denominated assets, The Company does not use foreign currency
forward exchange contracts or purchase currency options for investment purpose.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG EONG) LIMITED (FORMEBRLY EMNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3] December 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Forelgn curreney risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period 10 a reascnably
possible change in currency rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit / [oss

before tax and the Compeny's equity.
2019 2018
Increase I Increase
in local ¢ d Y Increases in [ocal Increase
BCcrease p Incrense
ewrency onlgss \decrease)  currency nprofit ity
against béfiin tax in cquity egainst before tax ke L
HED HED
HES000  HKS 000 HES'0  HEE'G00
CAD 5% (112) (112 5% 191 191
CHNY 5% &0 &0 5 - -
IPY 5% {496) (496) 5% 486 486
MYR % (130 (130) 5% - -
SGD % 214 (214) % 857 857

The table below summarises the Company's exposure to [foreign currency risk at vear end by
categorising assets and liabilities by major correncies.

2009
CAD CNY PY MYR G0 Tatal
HES'000 HESQ00  JIKE000 HES0M HES'000 HES'W000
Spot assets 1.968 1,206 2,876 - 4 4,054
Spot liabilities (4.214) - (12.805) (2,598) (IB287)  (37.904)
Met long / {short)
position (2.248) 1.206 (9.925) (2,598}  (18283) (31 850)
2018
CAD CNY IPY MYER SGD Total
REE000  HKF'O000  HKEOO0 HES'0M  HESW0M0  HES'000
Spot asssts I7} - - - - 171
Spot Labilities (3.586) - [9.728) - {17,136)  (30,850)
et long / {short)
position (3.815) - {9,728) - {17.136)  (30.,679)
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED)

WNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Inrerest rave risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or fiture cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate
because of changes in interest rates. The Company'a interest rate policy requires it (o manage interest
rate risk by maintaining appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate instruments, The policy also
requires it lo manages the materities of mterest-beering financial assets.

As et the end of the reporting period, the Company did not hold any variable oans and borrowings,
nor fixed rate financial assets classified s available for sale, and accordingly the interest rate risk for
the Company is considered by management as minimal.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as 2 going concern and to maintain healty capital retios in order to support its business and
maximise sharcholder valus. Moreover, as the Company is regulated by the Securities and Futures
Commission in Hoog Kong, it has to maintain sufficient liquid capital in accordance with the Hong
Kong Seeuritics and Futures (Finzncial Resources) Rules {the “FRR Rules”) throughout the year,

The Company manages its capital stricture and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or fssue new shares. No changes
were made to the objectives, policies or processes during the vears ended 3] December 2019 and
31 December 2018,

The Company monitors capital using liquid capital position, which is caleulated as liquid assets
mirus ranking liabilities as specified in the FRR Rules. The Company's policy is lo maintain liquid
capital in excess of the higher of 1) 5% of adjusted liabilitics, as defined in the FRR; and 2) the
minimum capital requirement of HED3 000,000 (couivalent to approximately TISD3ES 000), as
required by the FRR Rules. During the vear ended 3] December 2009 and 31 December 2018, the
Company has complied with the above liquid capital requirement.
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MANULIFE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
MANULIFE ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

23. UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Company manages several mvestment funds which meet the definition of structured entilies,
including Mandatory Provident Funds, Occupational Retirement Schemes, and apen-cided unit trusts,
The Company holds interests in these stractured entities through the receipt of management fees from
thess funds,

As at 31 Deeember 2019, the lotal met asset walues of these managed funds were
HKEI78,678,904,701 (2018: HK5379,269,273,957), The Company’s interest in these managed funds
was management fee income of HK$1,074,938,070 (2018: HKS1,100,236 8365) for the year, including
cutstanding receivables of HE$76,307,340 (2018: HKS84.300,970) as at 31 December 2019, The
maximum exposure to loss is equal fo the cutstanding receivables shown above,

9, EVENTS AFTER SUBSEQUENT PERIOD
{a) Capiml injection

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, capital injection amounting w USS10,000,000
{approximately HE$77,524,800) was authorised on 16 April 2020 and made on 21 April 2020 by
its immediate holding company, Manulife Investment Management International Holdings
Limited. Pursuent o the capilal injection, issusd amd fully paid share capital increased from
HES$1.672,944,843 to HES1,750,469,643.

(8) COVID-19

The Company’s fulure operations could be adversely fmpacted by the outhreak of COVID-19,
which was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 2020. The adversc
effects of COVID-19 to the global economy includs slowdown of economic growth in key
geographic markets, volatility in financial and commodity markets, foreign currency exchange
rate volatility, and disruptions of business operations,

The future effects of the outbreak of COVID-19 1o the Company are uncleer at this time and a
prelongation of the outbreak could have significant impacts to the Company.  Specific impact to
the Company’s business, earnings, cash flow and recoverability of assets and liabilities are pol
possible W be determined 2t this ime. Such effects will be reported in the financial statements
when they are known and can be estimaled.
0. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
Certein comparative amounts have bezn reclagsified and restsled (o conform with the current year’s
presentation and disclosures,
3. APPROVAL OF THE FDNANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were approved and avthorized for issue by the board of directors on
27 April 2020,

il
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Independent Auditor®s Report
To HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Manulife Investments Trust —

US Core Fixed Income Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Manulife Investments Trust — US Core Fixed Income Fund (a sub-trust of Manulife
Investments Trust) (the Fund) as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Accountants.

What we have audited
The Fund®s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended ;

the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then
ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®"s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board

for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Annual Report (but does not include the Fund®s financial statements and our auditor s
report thereon).

Our opinion on the Fund"s financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)
To HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Manulife Investments
Trust — US Core Fixed Income Fund

In connection with our audit of the Fund"s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institue of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund"s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
ligquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fundt’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Independent Auditor®s Report (continued)
To HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Manulife Investments
Trust — US Core Fixed Income Fund

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’ s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, iIf such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of the Fund in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

28 April 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
To the members of Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as
Manulife Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Limited (formerly known as Manulife Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) (the "Company'™)
set out on pages 6 to 51, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("'HKFRSs™) 1issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“'HKCO™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("'HKSAs™) and with
reference to Practice Note 820 (Revised), The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated
Entities of Intermediaries issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor"s responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
HKICPA"s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code'), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor®s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the report of the directors.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®™S REPORT (continued)

To the members of Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as
Manulife Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the HKCO, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in
accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of
Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor®"s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor”s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the HKCO, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition,
we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of
Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®™S REPORT (continued)

To the members of Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as
Manulife Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®™S REPORT (continued)

To the members of Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as
Manulife Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
27 April 2020
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